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IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. is @ worldwide leader in the development and
commercialization of innovative, technology-bused products and services
Jor veterinary, food and environmenial applications. The Company’s
largest business is focused on companion animal healdh, @’@mbﬁmi&ag
bivtechnology, medical device technology and information technology

to aid veterinarians in providing better medicine while butlding successfil
practices. IDEXXs food and environmental business is focused on

employing inneovaiive technologies to monitor production animal health

and the safety and quality of drinking water and milk.




FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Years ended December 31, 2001 . 2002
dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data i o
\
Total revenue 386,081 } 412,670
Income from operations 56,552 | 65815
Net income 37,620 45,389
Net income per share: diluted 1.09 1.30
Weighted shares outstanding: diluted 34,640 35043
Net cash provided by operating activities 46,364 108253 |
Cash and investments 100,575 162,763
Total assets 373,107 | 416652 |
| ?
Notes payable 8,380 | 973 !
! L
Total liabilities 71,377 | 73679 |
Stockholders’ equity 301,730 334}(0)9@73J
Total Revenue Net Income
millions of dollars millions of dollars
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* 1998 excludes a charge for in-process R&D of $37 million
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DEAR FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS,

I am delighted to report that IDEXX
Laboratories delivered strong financial
performance in 2002, demonstrating
the power of our unique strategic
position. Demand for our products
and services was strong, driving
top-line growth and improving
bottom line performance. In addition,
improvements in operations and asset
management strengthened both our
financial position and our outlook

for 2003.

Our revenues for 2002 were $413
million, an increase of 7% over 2001.
Diluted earnings per share grew

19% to $1.30 per share, reflecting
sales growth, good operational
execution and elimination of goodwill
amortization. Net cash provided by
operating activities was an extremely
strong $103 million, more than twice
the 2001 amount.

As we enter 2003, we believe we have
potential to accelerate annual revenue
growth to double digits, driven by
continued momentum in our core
lines of business and the launch of
some exciting new products, including
LaserCyte!” our next-generation
in-house hematology analyzer.

IDEXXs goal is to sustain the
creation of shareholder value through
leadership positions in our markets. In
companion animal health, our strategy
is to develop and market technically
advanced products and services that
allow veterinarians to practice better
medicine, thus enhancing their
practices. We identify selected
technologies in life sciences,
biotechnology and information
technology to develop proprictary
products that address our customers’

unique needs.




Almost 80% of our 2002 revenues

came from veterinarians caring for
family pets. As I visited our customers
throughout 2002, I found that
veterinarians are—first and foremost—
medical practitioners. They are looking
for the tools, technologies and services
that support the practice of better
medicine. Practice owners are also
business people, concerned about
growing their practices, servicing their
clients, managing staff and controlling
expenses. When we deliver better
medical solutions to our customers,

we achieve a triple win: pet owners
appreciate superior health care,
veterinarians succeed medically and
financially, and IDEXX achieves
profitable growth.

Extraordinary commitment to our
animal health customers is central

to our mission and essential to our
success. Through over 100 US sales
representatives and 600 distributor
representatives, we nurture an ongoing
relationship with virtually every US
veterinary clinic. Internationally, we
have similar coverage in our major
geographies (United Kingdom,
France, Germany, Japan). We have
implemented information technology
tools to track clinic history across all
of our products and services, providing
our marketing and field sales
organizations with proprietary insight
into customer behavior and preferences.

We provide customer support seven
days a week, since our customers need
immediate responses to their questions.
Our customers give us outstanding
ratings for our service quality; in a
recent survey, 88% rated us 4 or
better on a 5-point scale. OQur unique
understanding of our customers,
coupled with our broad product
portfolio and our marketing strength,
creates a franchise that enables

us to deliver attractive financial
performance on a consistent basis.

Achievement of our financial goals
also depends on continuous
improvement in the execution of our
plans. Last year, I reported that we
would focus on the predictability and
timing of new product introductions.
During 2002, we added to our product
development capabilities by designing
a new product development process
that will streamline decision-making
and capture process learning more
effectively. We had a number of
additional operational successes
during the year, including significant
improvement in inventory
management, including distributor
inventory, and accounts receivable
collection. We look to build on these
achievements and investments to
enhance our strategic position

for 2003 and beyond.

&. Damon Flyan (L), Deborah O’Neal (LC),
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Casavola, Technical Support, Schiphol-Rijk,
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COMPANION ANIMAL GROUP

In 2002, our integrated product and
service offering to companion animal
veterinarians produced $327 million

in revenue,

The underlying economics of this
market are well known. In the US,
households own approximately

68 million dogs, 71 million cats

and 6 million horses. While the pet
population grew only modestly
during the 1990s, growth in pet care
expenditures soared. The American
Veterinary Medical Association
reports that US expenditures on
veterinary care for dogs and cats grew
from $11 billion in 1996 to $18.2
billion in 2001, an average annual
growth rate of 10%.

Multiple surveys document the
existence and strengthening of the
emotional bond between owners and
pets, and indicate that pet owners
increasingly consider their pets to be
family members who deserve the best
veterinary medical care available.
Also of note, this market faces none
of the cost pressures experienced by
participants in the highly regulated and
managed human health care market.

Our top-line growth is driven by two
primary activities: introduction of new
products and services in response to
customer needs, and increased use

of current products and services as
veterinarians adopt best practices.
IDEXX’s strategy calls for aggressive
pursuit of both avenues for growth.

Our newest innovation for the
companion animal veterinarian is
LaserCyte}” a next-generation bench-
top hematology analyzer. LaserCyte™
offers veterinarians the capability to
generate reference-laboratory-quality
complete blood count (CBC) results
during an office visit by using
proprietary laser-flow cytometry.
Because hematology testing measures
living cells in a blood sample, sample
freshness is critical to overall quality
of results. By enabling clinics to obtain
lab-quality diagnostic information
real-time in the clinic, LaserCyte™
promotes improved diagnostic
capability for the veterinarian.

We launched LaserCyte™ in the last
quarter of 2002 with the sale of over

100 units. We expect that this new
analyzer will contribute to accelerated
2003 revenue growth. In addition,
LaserCyte™ is the first major
instrument product developed and
manufactured in-house, leading

to better control over future system
enhancements and more attractive

margins on the consumables.

LaserCyte™ augments our

IDEXX VetLab® line of in-house
instrumentation, which provides
integrated capability in hematology,
chemistry, electrolytes and
quantitative immunoassay testing.
In-house instrumentation placements
remained strong in 2002, with over
2,700 chemistry and hematology
systems placed worldwide, including
trade-outs of competitive equipment.
To date, we have placed over

45,000 chemistry and hematology
instruments in veterinary clinics
worldwide. Instrument placements
expand our installed base and drive
sales of associated consumables;
currently, consumables produce

over six times as much revenue as

instrument placements.
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Consumable use for all of our

instruments depends on the
veterinarian’s diagnostic approach.
IDEXX works with medical thought-
leaders, both internal and external, to
develop programs to educate
veterinarians and their staffs about the
value of diagnostic information in their
practices. As part of our LaserCyte™
introduction, we sponsored the
publication of a practitioner’s manual
on hematology, authored by three of
the industry’s leading experts. In 2002,
we continued our ongoing emphasis
on medical education through our
launch of a program highlighting the
importance of monitoring metabolic
functions of animals being treated with
long-term medications. In 2003, we
are implementing a program focused
on the care of senior pets. These

efforts support the veterinarian’s
desire to serve his or her clients
effectively, and provide tools for staff
education, a critically important aspect
of clinic management.

Our point-of-care test kits for dogs
and cats provide veterinarians accurate
diagnoses during the pet visit, allowing
them to commence treatment
immediately. In 2002, our worldwide
revenues of rapid assay kits grew 4.5%.
However, the reported sales growth
does not tell the full story. Sales of
these kits to veterinary clinics, the
end-users, grew approximately 12% in
the US. The difference in these growth
rates represents a reduction in product
inventory held by US distributors.

This planned reduction was part of our
initiative to build a leaner distribution
channel, improving channel efficiency

and reducing cost.

Clinic-level growth in canine point-of-
care tests illustrated the continued
success of our SNAP® 3Dx™ product,
which permits detection of three
important diseases—heartworm,
Enrlichia canis and Lyme—from a
single sample. Speed, ease-of-use and
accuracy make the SNAP® platform
ideal for combination assays, which
provide veterinarians with more
diagnostic information and greater
convenience. In addition, SNAP®
3Dx™ is the most accurate in-house
diagnostic for Lyme disease, an
increasing concern to pet owners and
veterinarians in the US, due to recent
evidence that the disease has spread

throughout the continental US.

Clinic-level sales of our feline test kits
increased as well, primarily from
increased sales of our combination
SNAP® test for feline immunodeficiency
virus (FIV) and feline leukemia virus
(FeLV). In the US, IDEXX produces
the only immunoassay available for
FIV diagnosis, either in-house or in
reference laboratories, selling about
three million tests annually.
Interestingly, veterinary thought-
leaders believe that a high proportion
of the 71 million domestic cats should
be tested regularly, representing a
significant growth opportunity for this
product line.

Our laboratory services business grew
10% in 2002, maintaining strong
market share in the geographies where
we operate. The laboratory network
complements our in-house diagnostics
offerings by providing the latest
laboratory-based diagnostic technologies
backed up by the expertise of over

80 pathologists, who consult with and
educate our customers. We enhanced
our capabilities in consulting during
2002 through the acquisition of
VetMed, a New Mexico-based

telemedicine business.




We provide veterinarians with
information technology tools for
efficient and effective practice
management as well. We lead the

US market with our Microsoft®
Windows®-based Cornerstone ®
practice management software system,
and we believe our systems capture
approximately 40% of the US market
for veterinary software and hardware.
Our market leadership is due to our
product strength, customer support
and long-term commitment to the
veterinary industry. In 2002, we
launched a new version of Cornerstone®
as well as the Veterinary Pharmacy
Reference (VPR™) module, which,

as the first interactive formulary for
veterinarians, reduces the risk of

adverse reactions from multiple drugs.

Development of a robust
pharmaceutical pipeline continues to
be a major priority at IDEXX, and in
2002 we continued to make steady
progress toward the introduction of
some exciting new products. Qur
pharmaceutical strategy is to utilize
known active ingredients from both
human and veterinary medicine and
adapt them to the unique needs of
companion animal medicine, in part

through novel delivery technologies.

We anticipate Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) approval of
two equine pharmaceutical products
before the end of 2003. The first is
SURPASS?" a topical formulation

of diclofenac, a nonsteroidal anti-
inflammatory drug used to treat
equine lameness. The second,
NAVIGATOR? is a formulation

of nitazoxanide that treats equine
protozoal myeloencephalitis (EPM),
a common parasite-induced
neurological disease that occurs
throughout the US. These two
products together could generate up to
$40 to $45 million of annual revenue.

For cats, we continued development
of a unique single-injection, long-
acting formulation of tilmicosin, a
broad-spectrum antibiotic. In 2002,

we made excellent progress in clinical
development of the formulation. This
therapeutic has significant compliance
and convenience advantages over daily
oral dosing regimens that are standard
for feline antibiotics. We estimate

the potential annual revenues for this
product at over $40 million. We believe
the proprietary long-acting delivery
technology used in the tilmicosin
product provides a strong platform

for the development of additional
antibiotic products for pets.
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Foop AND ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP

Our Food and Environmental Group
achieved 10% revenue growth in 2002,
led by the Production' Animal Services
(PAS) business, with 22% growth.

PAS develops and markets diagnostic
products and services to food animal
producers, regulatory agencies and
government laboratories around

the world. Its broad portfolio of
livestock and pouitry diagnostics
positions PAS well to support
customers managing or monitoring
the health of food animal populations.
PAS benefited from very strong
European resuilts in 2002, particularly
in bovine diagnostics. PAS is our oldest
and most international business area,

deriving 64% of revenue from non-US

markets in 2002,
b e

—

We continue to work on developing
diagnostics for transmissible
spongiform encephalopathies,
which include bovine spongiform
encephalopathy, or mad cow disease,
and chronic wasting disease of deer
and elk. Current testing procedures
for these diseases are cumbersome;
therefore, we see significant
opportunities across a number of
species for introducing improved
diagnostic technology for these
conditions.

IDEXX's water quality business, which
achieved 10% growth in 2002, leads
the market worldwide in detecting

E. coli and other microbial pathogens
in drinking water. In 2002, we received
approval for our flagship products,
Colilert®-18 and Quanti-Tray? in
Germany. With approvals now in the
United Kingdom, Denmark and
Germany, we expect other countries

in the European Union (EU) to follow
in 2003 and 2004. The opening of
Germany, a major market in the EU,
will help us sustain revenue growth in

this business.




A STRONG FOUNDATION
FOR FUTURE GROWTH

Qur financial performance in 2002
was accompanied by a series of

steps that we took to strengthen the
business and enhance the foundation
for accelerated growth in 2003 and
beyond. We reorganized the customer-
facing organization within our
companion animal business to leverage
fully the depth of our combined
product and service offering through
an integrated and coordinated
approach to marketing, sales and
service. We continued to strengthen
our organization, commencing an
effort to recruit 30 new scientists in
support of our commitment to develop
unique and proprietary animal health
products. We reinforced sales and
distribution capability worldwide,
through the addition of a major US
distributor, expansion of our sales
force, automating sales force call
management, and introducing distance
learning tools for sales training.

In 2002, we took several steps to
ensure that our corporate governance
sets an example in the new business
and regulatory environment. Our
Board of Directors adopted Corporate
Governance Guidelines that codify the

_@1

_@}

a. Kimberlee Sylvester. Laboratory Service
Representative, Westbrook, Maine

. Mark Garrepy, Principal Design
Engineer, Westbrook, Maine

principles we believe are important

to good corporate governance.
Among several other elements, the
Guidelines confirm and document the
independence requirements for our
Audit, Compensation and Governance
committee members and establish an
independent lead director role on

the Board. We also adopted a more
comprehensive Code of Ethics, which
governs the behavior of all employees
of the company. Our stockholders can
read these documents, as well as the
Charters of our Board Committees and
other information about our Directors

and Officers, on our Web site at

www.idexx.com/aboutidexx/governance.

In 2002, Mr. Jack Hesse retired from
the Board after 16 years of exemplary
service, and we will miss his insight.

In February of this year, we welcomed
our newest member, Dr. Errol

De Souza, who brings to us an
extraordinary record in life science
research and commercial development.
I believe that oversight from an
involved and independent Board is
critical to the success of any company,
and at IDEXX, our Board sets a high
standard in this regard.

What unites all of us at IDEXX—
employees and Directors alike—is our
mission to be a great company for our
employees, customers and stockholders
by creating exceptional long-term
value through worldwide leadership
in our chosen markets. I am pleased
to report that in 2002, we achieved
significant success in fulfilling our
mission. Like any successful
organization, we must and will raise
the bar for 2003, and we look forward
to the opportunities ahead of us.

Jonathan W. Ayers
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Forward-looking statements, within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are made throughout this Annual Repoit on Form 10-K,
including statements relating to management’s expectations regarding new product introductions; the adequacy of the
Company'’s sources for certain components, raw materials and finished products; and the Company’s ability to utilize certain
inventory. For this purpose, any statements contained herein that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be
forward-locking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “seeks,”
“estimates,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. There are a number of important
factors that could cause IDEXX('s results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements,
including those detailed under the caption “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and “- Future Operating Resuits.”

LY

In addition, any forward-looking statements represent the Company’s views only as of the day this Annual Report
on Form 10-K was first filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and should not be relied upon as representing the
Company’s views as of any subsequent date. While the Company may elect to update forward-locking statements at some
peint in the future, the Company specifically disclaims any obligation to do so, even if its views change.

PART L
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. (“we”, “us”, the “Company” or “IDEXX”, which includes wholly-owned subsidiaries
unless the context otherwise requires), develops, manufactures and distributes products and provides services for the

veterinary and the food and environmental markets. Our products and services include:

o  point of care veterinary diagnostic products;

[o]

laboratory and consulting services used by veterinarians;
o  veterinary pharmaceutical preducts;
o information preducts and services, including sofiware, used in veterinary practice management;
o diagnostic and health monitoring products and services for producticn animals;
o  preducts that test water for certain microbiclogical contaminants; and
o  products that test milk for antibiotic residues.
Most of our sales are derived from the sale of our veterinary diagnostic preducts and services.
We are a Delaware corporation and were incorporated in 1983. Our principal executive offices are located at One
IDEXX Drive, Westbrook, Maine 04092, cur telephone number is (207) 856-0300, and our Internet address is
www.idexx.com.
We make available free of charge on our Internet website cur Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on

Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Ferm 8-K, and amendments to thase reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we file
such information with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

IDEXX®, IDEXX VetLab™, ACAREXX®, Colilert®, Colisure®, Defined Substrate Technclogy®, DST®,
Enterolert™, Filta-Max®, LaserCyte™, PZI VET®, Parallux®, PetChek®, Practice Developer™, Quanti-Tray®, SNAP®,
VetLyte®, VetTest® and 3Dx™ are trademarks of the Company. Autoread™, QBC® and VetAutoread™ are trademarks of
Becton, Dickinson and Company (“Becton Dickinson”). SimPlate® is a trademark of BioControl Systems, Inc. All other
products and company names are trademarks of their respective holders.




PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We operate in two primary business areas: products and services for the veterinary market, which we refer to as our
Companion Animal Group (“CAG”) segment, and products and services for food and environmental markets, which we refer
to as our Food and Environmental Group ("FEG") segment. See Note 10 to the financial statements for financial information
about our business segments, including geographic information.

COMPANION ANIMAL GROUP
Immunoassays

We provide a broad range of single-use, hand-held test kits that allow quick (in most cases, less than ten minutes),
accurate and convenient testing for a variety of companion animal diseases and health conditions. These products enable
veterinarians to provide improved service to animal owners by delivering test results in the clinic, allowing the veterinarian to
initiate therapy or prevention during the office visit, if required.

Our principal single-use tests are sold under the SNAP name, and include a feline combination test, the SNAP
Combo FIV antibody/FeLV antigen test, which enables veterinarians to test simultaneously for feline leukemia virus
(“FeLV”) and feline immunodeficiency virus (“FIV”) (similar to the human AIDS virus}; a canine combination test, the
SNAP 3Dx, which tests simultaneously for Lyme disease, Ehrlichia canis and heartworm; and a canine heartworm only test.
Sales of heartworm tests are significantly greater in the first half of our fiscal year due to seasonality of the disease.

In addition to our single-use tests, we sell a line of microwell-based test kits, under the PetChek name, which are
used by larger clinics and independent laboratories to test multiple samples. PetChek tests offer accuracy, ease of use and
cost advantages to high-velume customers. We currently sell PetChek tests for FeLV, FIV and canine heartworm disease.

Instruments

We currently market several instrument systems, as well as associated consumable products, for use in veterinary
clinics. These instruments include the following:

Blood Chemistry. Our VetTest bloed chemistry analyzer is used to measure levels of certain enzymes and other
substances in blood in order to assist the veterinarian in diagnosing physiologic conditions. Twenty-one separate biood
chemistry tests can be performed on the VetTest analyzer. Commonly run tests include glucose, alkaline phosphatase, ALT
(alanine aminotransferase), creatinine, BUN (blood urea nitrogen) and total protein.

Hematology. In October 2002 we introduced the LaserCyte system, a new hematology system that uses laser flow
cytometry technology to analyze components of blood, including red blood celis, white blood cells, and platelets. We believe
that the LaserCyte system is the only in-clinic hematology system that provides veterinarians with a five-part white blood cell
differential and an absolute reticulocyte count, which provides enhanced diagnostic capabilities to veterinarians. We also sell
the QBC® VetAutoread™ hematology analyzer, which is based on the Becton Dickinson QBC® Autoread™ hematology
system that is sold to physicians for human applications.

Electrolytes. Our VetLyte system measures three electrolytes -- sodium, potassium and chloride -- to aid in
evaluating acid-base and electrolyte balances and assessing plasma hydration. Test results are available in less than one
minute after sample introduction and are either displayed on the VetLyte analyzer or downloaded to the VetTest analyzer.

Quantitative Hormone Testing. The VetTest SNAP Reader allows the veterinarian to obtain quantitative
measurement of hermones including thyroxine (T4) and cortisol. These measurements assist in diagnosing and monitoring
the treatment of certain endocrine diseases, such as hyper- and hypo-thyroidism, Cushing's syndrome and Addison's disease.
The VetTest SNAP Reader is a module that can be integrated with the VetTest chemistry analyzer. Samples and reagents are
introduced to the analyzer using our SNAP device.

Veterinary Laboratory and Consulting Services

We offer commercial veterinary laboratory and consulting services in the U.S. through facilities located in Arizona,
California, Colorado, Illinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey, Oregon and Texas. Through subsidiaries located in the




United Kingdom, Japan and Australia, we offer commercial veterinary laboratory services to veterinary clinics located in
those countries. Veterinarians use our services by submitting samples by courier or overnight delivery to one of our
facilities. Our laboratories offer a large selecticn of tests and diagnostic panels to detect a number of disease staies and other
conditions in production and companion animals.

Additionally, we provide specialized veterinary consultation, telemedicire and advisory services, including
cardiclogy, radiclogy, internal medicine, dermatology and ultrascund consulting. These services permit veterinarians to
obtain readings and interpretations of test results transmitted by telephone and over the Internet from the veterinarians'
offices.

Approximately 73%, 74% and 75% of the Company’s revenues were derived from sales of veterinary diagnostic
products and services within the CAG segment in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Information Products and Services

We develop, market and sell practice information management software systems that run key functions of veterinary
clinics, including scheduling, billing and patient records management. Our systems also provide veterinarians with the
ability to electronically download laboratory resuits from our veterinary reference laboratories directly into the patient’s
medical records. We believe we are the leading provider of veterinary practice information management software systems in
the U.S. with an installed based of more than 8,000 cf the approximately 25,000 veterinary hespitals in North America. We
also provide software and hardware support and derive 2 significant portion of cur revenues for this product line from
ongoing service contracts.

Veterinary Pharmaceuticals

We develop, market and sell novel therapeutics for the veterinary market. In December 2000, we introduced
ACAREXX (.01% Ivermectin) otic suspension for the treatment of ear mites in cats, our first drug approved by the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (‘FDA”). In 2002 we commenced active marketing of PZI VET®, an insulin product for the
treatment of diabetic cats, under the FDA's regulatory discretion guidelines. We currently have a number of other products
under development, including 2 nitazoxanide-based product for treatment of equine protozoal myelcencephalitis, a
neurclogical disease that is believed to affect approximately 200,000 horses in the U.S.; diclofenac, a topical non-steroidal
anti-inflammatory for equine use; and tilmicosin, a long-acting, injectable antibictic for cats. We have completed the
manufacturing, safety and efficacy compenents of our New Animal Drug Application (“NADA”) for nitazoxanide, and we
have submitted revised labeling and Freedom of Information Act summary information as requested by the FDA. We have
completed the safety and efficacy components of our NADA for diclofenac, and have submitted information relating to
manufacturing in response to questions from the FDA. We anticipate submitting information in support of a NADA for
tilmicosin to the FDA in 2003.

FOOD AND ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP

We sell products that detect microbial contaminants in water and antibiotic residues in milk, and a broad range of
diagnostic and health monitoring products for production animals (primarily poultry, livestock and swine).

Approximately 21%, 20% and 20% of the Company’s revenues were derived from sales of food and environmental
products and services in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Through a series of transactions completed late in 1999 and
early 2000, we disposed of cur feod microbiclogy testing products and services business. Revenues from this disposed
product line were approximately $0.8 million in 2000.

Water and Dairy Testing Products

Our Colilert, Colilert-18 and Colisure tests, based on patented Defined Substrate Technology (“DST"),
simultaneously detect total coliforms and E. coli in water. These crganisms are broadly used as indicators of microbial
contamination in water. Our DST products utilize indicator-nutrients that preduce a change in color or fluorescence when
metabolized by target microbes in the sample. Our water tests are used by government laboratories, water utilities and
private certified laboratories to test drinking water in compliance with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA”)
standards. The tests also are used in evaluating water used in production processes (for example, in beverage and
pharmaceutical applications) and in evaluating bottled water, recreational water, waste water and water from private wells.




Our Enterolert product is alse based on DST and detects enterococci in drinking and recreational waters, with results
available in 24 hours. Our Quanti-Tray products, when used in conjunctien with our Colilert, Colilert-18, Colisure or
Enterelert products, provide users quantitative measurements of microbial contamination, rather then a presence/absence
indication. The Colilert, Colilert-18, Colisure and Quanti-Tray products have been approved by the EPA and by regulatory
agencies in certain other countries.

In August 2000, we acquired Genera Technologies Limited, a U.K.-based company that develops and sells products
for detection of cryptosporidia in water. Cryptosporidia are parasites that can cause potentially fatal gastrointestinal illness if
ingested. Testing of water supplies for cryptosperidia is mandated by regulation in the United Kingdom but is not regulated
in other countries at this time.

We offer two principal products for use in testing for antibiotic residue in milk, the SNAP Beta-lactam test and the
Parallux system, an instrument-based testing system. Dairy producers and processors use our tests for quality assurance of
raw milk, and government and food quality managers use them for ongoing surveillance.

We have entered into an agreement with the FDA under which we have agreed, among other things, to perform
specified lot release and stability testing of our SNAP Beta-lactam products and to provide related data to the FDA. If the
FDA were to determine that cne or more lots of product failed to meet applicable criteria for product performance or stability,
the FDA could take various actions, including requiring us to recall products or restricting our ability to sell these preducts.
Sales of dairy antibiotic residue testing products were $16.3 million in 2002.

Production Animal Services

We sell diagnostic tests and related instrumentation and software that are used to detect a wide range of diseases and
monitor health status in production animais. Our production animal products are purchased primarily by government
laboratories and poultry and swine producers. Significant products include diagnostic tests for porcine reproductive and
respiratory syndrome (“PRRS”) and pseudcrabies virus in pigs; Newcastle disease in pouliry; and johne's disease and
brucellosis in cattle.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

We market, sell and service our preducts in more than 50 countries through our marketing, sales and technical
service groups as well as through independent distributors and other resellers. We maintain sales offices outside the U.S. in
Australia, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Mexico, The Netherlands, Spain, Taiwan and the United Kingdom.

Generally, we will select the appropriate distribution channel for our preducts based on the type of product,
technical service requirements, number and concentration of customers, regulatory requirements and other factors. We
market our veterinary diagnostic products to veterinarians both directly and through independent veterinary distributors in the
U.S., with most instruments sold directly by IDEXX sales personnel, and test kits and instrument consumables supplied both
via the distribution channel and directly. Qutside the U.S., we sell our veterinary diagnostic products through independent
distributors and other resellers and, in certain countries, through our direct sales force. We market our software products and
veterinary laboratory services through our direct sales force. We market our water, dairy, livesteck and poultry products
primarily through our direct sales force in the U.S. and Canada. Outside the U.S. and Canada, we market these products
through selected independent distributors and, in certain countries, through our direct sales force.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, 29%, 28% and 27%, respectively, of our revenue was attributable to sales of products and
services to customers outside the U.S. Risks asscciated with foreign operations include the need for additional regulatory
approvals, possible disruptions in transportation of our products, the differing product needs of foreign customers, difficulties
in building and managing foreign operations, fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies, import/export duties and quotas,
and unexpected regulatory, economic or political changes in foreign markets. We engage in hedging activities to reduce the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations on our earnings. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for information
by geographic region; Note 1(j) to the consolidated financial statements for a description of our hedging activities; and
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk” for a description of foreign currency exchange risk.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, no customer accounted for 10% or more of our sales.




RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our business includes the development and introduction of new products and may involve entry into new business
areas. Our research and development activity is focused primarily on development of new animal drugs, new diagnostic
instrument platforms, new immuncassay devices, new diagnostic tests and improvements to our diagnostic and testing
products. Our research and development expenses were appreximately $29.3 million, $28.4 million and $28.3 million in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

PATENTS AND LICENSES

We actively seek to obtain patent protection in the U.S. and other countries for inventions covering cur products and
technologies. We also license patents and technologies from third parties. These licenses include an exclusive royalty-
bearing license of certain patents relating to diagnestic products for FIV, which expire in 2009, from The Regents of the
University of California; an exclusive royalty-bearing license of certain patents relating to DST utilized in the Colilert,
Colilert-18, Colisure and Enterolert water testing products, which expire in 2007; exclusive licenses to certain patents and
patent applications relating to detection of Lyme disease, which expire beginning in 2019, from Tulane University and the
University of Texas; and a non-exclusive royalty-bearing license from Barnes-Jewish Hospital to certain patents relating fo
canine heartworm tests, which expire in 2006. In addition, we hold a U.S. patent, which expires in 2014, covering certain
methods and kits for simultaneously detecting antigens and antibedies, which covers our SNAP Combo FeL V/FIV and
Canine SNAP 3Dx combination tests.

To the extent some of our products may now, or in the future, embody technologies protected by patents, copyrights
or trade secrets of others, we may be required ic obtain licenses to such technologies in order to continue to sell cur products.
These licenses may not be available on commercially reasonable terms. Our failure to obtain any such licenses may delay or
prevent the sale of certain new or existing products. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations - Future Operating Results.”

PRODUCTION AND SUPPLY

VetTest analyzers are manufactured for us by Tokyo Parts Industrial Company Ltd. under an agreement that renews
annually unless either party notifies the other of its decision not to renew. The dry chemistry slides used in the VetTest
analyzer (“VetTest Slides”) are supplied exclusively by Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc. (formerly known as Johnson and
Johnsen Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.) (“Ortho”) under supply agreements with Ortho (the “Ortho Agreements”). We are
required t¢ purchase all of our requirements for VeiTest Slides from Ortho to the extent Ortho is able to supply those
requirements. In addition, we have commitied to minimum annual purchase velumes cf certain VetTest Slides during the
term of the Ortho Agreements. The Ortho Agreements do not prehibit Orthe from selling dry chemistry slides for use in
veterinary applications, and Ortho currently sells dry chemistry slides for use in its own analyzer, which is primarily designed
for human applicaticns but is also used in the veterinary market. However, Ortho may not sell slides that are bar-coded for
use in the VetTest analyzer to any party other than IDEXX. The Ortho Agreements expire on December 31, 2010, although
our purchase obligation may be extended at our option through December 31, 2011,

The QBC®VetAutcread™ system is manufactured for us by Becton Dickinson under a development and distribution
agreement that requires Becton Dickinson to supply analyzers to us through 2008 and reagents through 2610. Becton
Dickinson is the sole source of these analyzers and reagents.

Certain other components of our products, including the lasers used in our LaserCyte system, alsc are available from
only one source. While we do not anticipate difficulties in obtaining any of the components used in our products, the loss of
any of these sources of supply would have a material adverse effect on the Company.

We do not generally maintain significant backlog and believe that our backlog at any particular date historically has
not been indicative of future sales. However, backlog at December 31, 2002 was larger than in prior periods due to our
intreduction of the LaserCyte system in the fourth quarter of 2002. As of December 31, 2002, our backlog of LaserCyte
orders was approximately $3.3 million.




COMPETITION

We face intense competition within the markets in which we sell our products and services. We expect that future
competition will become even more intense, and that we will have to compete with changing technologies, which could affect
the marketability of our products and services. Our competitive position also will depend on our ability to develop
proprietary products, attract and retain qualified scientific and other personnel, develop and implement production and
marketing plans, obtain patent protection and obtain adequate capital resources.

We compete with many companies ranging from small businesses focused on animal health to large pharmaceutical
companies. Our competitors vary in our different markets. Academic institutions, governmental agencies and other public
and private research organizations also conduct research activities and may commercialize products, which could compete
with our products, on their own or through joint ventures. Some of our competitors have substantially greater capital,
manufacturing, marketing and research and development resources than us.

Competitive factors in our different business areas are detailed below:

o Veterinary diagnostic products and food and environmental test preducts. We compete primarily on the basis of the
ease of use, speed, accuracy and other performance characteristics of our products and services, the breadth of our product
line and services, the effectiveness of our sales and distribution channels, the quality of our technical and customer service
and pricing.

o  Veterinary laboratory services. In this market, we compete primarily on the basis of quality, service and technology.
We compete in certain geographic locations with Antech Diagnostics, a unit of VCA Antech, Inc.

o Veterinary pharmaceuticals. We compete primarily on the basis of the performance characteristics of our products.

o Veterinary practice information management software systems. We compete primarily on the basis of ease of use,
performance characteristics, effectiveness of our customer service, information handling capabilities, and advances in
technologies.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Many of our preducts are subject to regulation by U.S. and foreign regulatory agencies. The following is a
description of the principal regulations affecting our businesses.

Veterinary diagnostic producis. Most diagnostic tests for animal health applications are veterinary biclogical
products that are regulated in the U.S. by the Center for Veterinary Biologics within the U.S. Department of Agriculture's
(“USDA”) Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (“APHIS”). The APHIS regulatory approval process involves the
submission of product performance data and manufacturing documentation. Following regulatory approval to market a
product, APHIS requires that each lot of product be submitted for review before release to customers. In addition, APHIS
requires special approval to market products where test results are used in part for government-mandated disease
management programs. A number of foreign governments accept APHIS approval as part of their separate regulatory
approvals. However, compliance with an extensive regulatory process is required in connection with marketing diagnostic
products in Japan, Germany, The Netherlands and many other countries. We also are required to have a facility license from
APHIS to manufacture USDA-licensed products. We have obtained such a license for our manufacturing facility in
Westbrook, Maine.

Our instrument systems are medical devices regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) under the
Food, Drug and Cosmetics Act (the “FDC Act”). While the sale of these products does not require premarket approval by
FDA and does not subject us to the FDA's Good Manufacturing Practices regulations (“GMPs”), these products must not be
adulterated or misbranded under the FDC Act.

Veterinary pharmaceuticals. The manufacture and sale of veterinary pharmaceuticals are regulated by the Center for
Veterinary Medicine (*CVM”) of the FDA. A new animal drug may not be commercially marketed in the U.S. unless it has
been approved as safe and effective by CYM. Approval may be requested by filing a New Animal Drug Application
("NADA”) with CVM containing substantial evidence as to the safety and effectiveness of the drug. Data regarding
manufacturing methods and controls are also required to be submitted with the NADA. Manufacturers of animal drugs must
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also comply with GMPs and Good Laboratory Practices (“GLPs”). Sales of animal drugs in countries outside the U.S.
require compliance with the laws of those countries, which may be extensive.

Water testing products. Our water tests are not subject to formal premarket regulatory approval. However, before a
test may be used as part of a water quality monitoring program required by the EPA, the test must first be approved by the
EPA. The EPA approval process involves submission of extensive product performance data in accordance with an EPA
approved protocol, evaluation of the data by the EPA and publication for public comment of any proposed approval in the
Federal Register before final approval. Our Colilert, Colilert-18, Colisure, Quanti-Tray, Filta-Max and SimPlate for HPC
products have been approved by the EPA. The sale of water testing products alsc is subject to extensive and lengthy
regulatory processes in many cther countries arcund the world.

Dairy testing products. The sale of dairy testing products in the U.S. is regulated by the FDA in conjunction with
the Association of Official Analytical Chemists - Research Institute (“ACAC-RI”). Before a product may be sold, extensive
product performance data must be submitted in accordance with a protocol that is approved by the FDA and the ACAC-RL
Following approval of a product by FDA, the product must aiso be approved by the National Conference on Interstate Milk
Shipments (“NCIMS"), an oversight body that includes state, federal and industry representatives. Cur SNAP Beta-lactam
and Parallux dairy antibiotic residue testing products have been approved by the FDA and NCIMS. While some foreign
countries accept AGAC-RI approval as part of their regulatory approval process, many countries have separate regulatery
precesses.

Any acquisitions of new products and technologies may subject us to additional areas of government regulation.
These may involve food, drug and water quality regulations of the FDA, the EPA and the USDA, as weli as state, local and
foreign governments. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -
Future Operating Results.”

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2002, IDEXX had approximately 2,181 full-time and part-time employees. We are not a party
to any collective bargaining agreement and we believe that relaticns with our employees are good.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 290,000 square feet of office and manufacturing space in Westbrook, Maine under a lease
expiring in 2008, approximately 75,000 square feet of industrial space in Memphis, Tennessee for use as a distribution
facility, under a lease expiring in 2007, approximately 40,000 square feet of office and manufacturing space in Eau Claire,
Wisconsin for our veterinary practice infermation management software business, under a lease expiring 2009, and
approximately 40,000 square feet of warehouse and office space in The Netherlands for use as our headquarters for European
operaticns, under a lease expiring 2008.

We also lease a total of approximately 100,000 square feet of smaller office, manufacturing and warehouse space in
the U.S. and elsewhere in the world. In addition, we cwn or lease approximately 112,000 square feet of space in the U.S.,
Australia and the United Kingdom for use as veterinary reference laborateries and office space for our veterinary consulting
services. Of this space, 46,000 square feet is owned by us and the remaining amount is leased, under leases having expiration
dates up to the year 2012.

We consider that the properties are generally in good condition, are well maintained, and are generally suitable and
adequate to carry on our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are not a party to any material legal proceedings.
ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this
report.



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Our executive officers as of March 12, 2003 were as follows:

Name Age Title
Jonathan W. Ayers..........ccccccorinvecneeccnne 46 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Erwin F. Workman, Jr., Ph.D. ................. 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer
Louis W. Pollock ......ccooveuiivnniiirireien, 49 Senior Vice President
Conan R. Deady.......cccoooeniverinnneee, 41  Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
S. Sam Fratoni, Ph.D. ....c.c.oooovevvene 55 Vice President
Robert S. HulSy.....cccconniiiiiinenrenc 58  Vice President
Merilee Raines........cccccooerniivvicocnreenenen 47 Vice President, Finance and Treasurer
Quentin Tonelli, Ph.D...........cooeien 54  Vice President

Mr. Ayers has been Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of IDEXX since January 2002.
Prior to joining IDEXX, in 2000 and 2001, Mr. Ayers was President of Carrier Corporation, the largest business unit of
United Technologies Corporation, a provider of high technology products and services to the building systems and aerospace
industries, and from July 1997 te December 1999, he was President of Carrier Asia Pacific Operations. From March 1995 to
June 1997, Mr. Ayers was Vice President, Strategic Planning at United Technologies. Before joining United Technologies,
from May 1991 te March 1995, Mr. Ayers was Principal of Corporate Finance and from August 1986 to May 1891, he was
Vice President of Mergers and Acquisitions, at Morgan Stanley & Co. Mr. Ayers holds an undergraduate degree in Molecular
Biophysics and Biochemistry from Yale University and an MBA from Harvard University.

Dr. Workman has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer since November 1997 and as a
Director since 1993. He also served as President and Chief Operating Officer from 1993 to November 1997. Before joining
the Company in 1984, he was Manager of Research and Development for the Hepatitis and AIDS Business Unit within the
diagnostic division of Abbott Laboratories, Inc.

Mr. Pollock became Senior Vice President of the Company in July 2000 and was a Vice President from December
1994. Mr. Pollock has been Senior Vice President of the Companion Animal Group Customer Facing Organization since
July 2002. From July 1999 to July 2002 Mr. Pollock was President of the Professional Office Diagnostics Division within the
Companion Animal Group. Mr. Pollock joined the Company in 1986 and served in positions of increasing responsibility in
veterinary products sales management before serving as President of the Company's International Division from December
1994 to March 1896 and as President of the Company's Food and Environmental Group from March 1996 until July 1999.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Pollock was employed in various sales and marketing positions with Abbott Laboratories,
Inc.

Mr. Deady has been Vice President and General Counsel of the Company since August 1999 and was Deputy
General Counsel of the Company from June 1987. Before joining the Company in June 1997, Mr. Deady was Deputy
General Counsel of Thermo Electron Corporation, a manufacturer of technology-based instruments. Mr. Deady was
previously affiliated with Hale and Dorr LLP, a Boston-based law firm.

Dr. Fratoni has been Vice President of the Company since May 1997 and Chief Information Officer since November
2000. He was President of the Company's Food and Environmental Group from July 1899 to December 2000. From May
1997 to July 1998, Dr. Fratoni was Vice President of Human Resources of the Company, and from October 1996 to May
1997, he was Director of Business Development for the Food and Environmental Group. Before joining the Company in
October 1996, Dr. Fratoni held various positions with Hewlett-Packard Company.

Mr. Hulsy has been Vice President of the Company since February 1999 and President of the Company's IDEXX
Laboratory Services business since August 1998. Before joining the Company in August 1998, Mr. Hulsy was President of
American Environmental Network, Inc., a network of environmental laboratories, from 1992 to 1998.

Ms. Raines has been Vice President, Finance of the Company since May 1995. Ms. Raines served as Division Vice
President, Finance from March 1995 to May 1985, Director of Finance from 1988 to March 1995 and Centroller from 1985
to 1988.

Dr. Tonelli became Vice President of the Company in June 2001 and is currently General Manager of the Production
Animal Service business unit within the Food and Environmental Group and oversees the Company’s infectious diseases
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research and development activities. Previously he has held various positions with the Company, inciuding Division Vice
President for Research and Development and Division Vice President, Business Development. Before jeining the Company
in 1984, he was a Group Leader of Research and Development for the Hepatitis and AIDS Business Unit within the
diagnostic division of Abbott Laboratories, Inc.

PART IIL

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbel IDXX. The table below shows the
high and low sale prices per share of cur Common Stock as reported on the Nasdag Stock Market for the years 2002 and
2001.

CALENDAR YEAR HIGH LOW
2002

First Quarter................... $29.30 $24.00
Second Quarter................ 3262 2460
Third Quarter.................. 32.00 23.80
Fourth Quarter................. 37.05 29.29
2001

First Quarter...............oo $25.50 $17.13
Second Quarter. . 32.38 19.13
Third Quarter.... . 30.90 20.20
Fourth Quarter................. 30.00 22.38

As of December 31, 2002, there were 1,183 holders of record of our Common Stock.

We have never paid any cash dividends on cur Common Stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data of the Company for each of the five years ended
December 31, 2002. The selected consolidated financial data presented below have been derived from the Company's
consolidated financial statements. These financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial

statements, related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 1938 1999 2000 2001 2002*
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenue..........cooveriiiiiiiiec e 321,713 $ 358,370 367432 8 386,081 $ 412,670
Cost of ReVeNUE..........ccvvviveiiieieiiieiee, 164,240 186,386 190,256 202,750 219,945
Gross Profit..........cooiiini 157,473 171,984 177,176 183,331 192,725
Expenses:
Sales and marketing...............ccooeii i, 81,725 53,885 54,956 57,087 56,794
General and administrative..................ccoeeeennnn. 43,959 43,969 40,677 41,266 40,787
Research and development......................cocoeen 22,687 27,313 28,292 28,426 29,329
Write-off of in-process research and development. .. 37,162 -
Income (loss) from operations..............co...co.ovvvnn... (8,060) 46,817 33,251 56,552 65,815
Interest inCOme, NEL.........oo.ivniiniiniiiianiien, 6,877 5,728 4,996 2,229 2,955
Net income (loss) before provision for income taxes..... (1,183) 52,545 58,247 58,781 68,770
Provision for income taxes...........oovvevievreereiineeninn. 14,032 19,967 21,615 21,161 23,381
Netincome (10SS).......ocoviiiiiniiiriiieiiieie (15,215) 8 32,578 36,632 § 37,620 § 45,389
Net income (loss) per share:
BaSiC...oviiee i ©.40) $ 0.85 1.06 § 113§ 1.35
Diluted. .......ooooiiiie 0.40) $ 0.82 1.02 $ 1.09 3 1.30
Weighted average shares outstanding:
BaSIC... v e 38,513 38,412 34,574 33,293 33,622
Diluted. .....coooviiiiini 38,513 39,743 36,081 34,640 35,043
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and investments.................cccovviieiniieniennna 155,650 $ 130,928 75,203 $ 100,575 § 162,763
Working capital................coo 188,829 158,774 141,781 164,199 213,441
Total @SSeIS ... euieiiieiierie e e 386,548 357,982 335,796 373,107 416,652
Totaldebt.......oovviiiii 9,381 3,543 8,472 8,380 973
Stockholders’ equity..........ccooveiiiiiiiiiniiii 307,840 284,341 261,747 301,370 340,973

* As a result of the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”,
goodwill is no Jonger amortized commencing January 1, 2002. Amortization expense would have been $4.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2002. See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS

OF OPERATIONS

We operate primarily through two business segments: the Companion Animal Group (*CAG”) and the Food and
Environmental Group (“FEG”). CAG comprises our veterinary diagnostic products and services, veterinary pharmaceutical
products, and veterinary information products and services. FEG comprises our water testing products, dairy testing products
and our production animal testing products. Additionally, Other is primarily comprised of corporate research and
development, CEQ succession charge and interest income.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The following is a discussion of the strategic and operating factors that we believe have the most significant effect
on the performance of our business.

Companion Animal Group

Our CAG segment accounted for approximately 79% of our sales in 2002 and is therefore our most significant
business. The largest product lines within our CAG segment are instruments and instrument consumables, laboratory
services, and rapid assays, which accounted for 43%, 24% and 22% of CAG revenues, respectively, in 2002. To date,
revenues from sales of pharmaceutical products have not been substantial. However, we are investing significantly in a

11



pipeline of companion animal pharmaceutical products. If we are successful in developing, obtaining FDA approval for, and
marketing these products, we believe that sales of pharmaceutical preducts will become a more material component of CAG
sales in the future.

By offering to companion animal veterinarians a broad range and an integrated set of proprietary diagnostic products
and services, therapeutics and practice management computer systems, we believe we have developed a strong customer
franchise, providing us a strategic advantage over companies with more narrow product or service offerings. Our
complementary products and services give us scale in sales and distribution in this market, and permit us to offer programs
such as “Practice Developer”, a customer reward that encourages purchases across multiple categories and builds customer
loyaity. By offering both point-of-care diagnostics for use in the clinic and outside laboratory services, we are able to !
develop integrated disease management sclutions that leverage the advantages of both point-of-care and iaboratory testing. In ,
addition, by integrating cur practice management software systems with our instruments and with our reference laboratories,
we enhance the veterinary practices of our customers by facilitating the flow of medical information in the clinic.

In the U.S., we sell instrument consumables, rapid assays and pharmaceuticals through distributors, and therefore
our reported sales of these preducts are sales made to distributors, rather than sales to veterinarians, the end users. Because
distributer inventory levels and purchasing patterns may fluctuate, sales of a particular product line in a particular period may
not always be representative of the underlying customer demand for the product. Therefore, we closely track sales of these
products by our distributors to the clinics (“clinic-level sales”), which we think provides a more accurate picture of the real
growth rate for these products. In the discussion of results below, we note certain instances where we believe reported sales
have been influenced, positively or negatively, by changes in distributer inventories.

Instruments and Instrument Consumables. Our instrument strategy is to provide veterinarians with an integrated set
of instruments (called IDEXX VetLab) that, individually and together, provide superior diagnostic information in the clinic,
enabling veterinarians to practice better medicine and build more profitable practices. We derive substantial revenues from
the sale of consumables that are used in these instruments. During the early stage of an instrument life cycle, we derive
relatively greater revenues from instrument placements, while consumable sales become relatively more significant in later
stages as the instalied base of instruments increases and instrument placements begin to decline. Our long-term success in
this area of our business is dependent on our ability both tc develop and sell new instruments with enhanced diagnostic
capabilities and to maximize customer utilization of those instruments, which creates more consumables sales.

We have a large installed base of VetTest chemisiry analyzers, and substantially all of cur revenues from that
product line are now derived {rom consumables sales, although we continue to place instruments through an active rental
program in the U.S. and through sales in Europe and Asia Pacific. As a result, the success of this preduct line is dependent cn
increased customer utilization of those instruments. Toward that end, we seek to educate veterinarians about best medical
practices that emphasize the impertance of blood chemistry testing for a variety of diagnostic purposes.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we intreduced our new hematology analyzer, the LaserCyte system, which provides
more extensive hematological diagnostic information than our original platform, the QBC® VetAutoread™ system. Our
success in growing hematclogy revenues over the next several years will depend upon our ability to sell LaserCyte
instruments, although we intend to continue to sell the QBC® VetAutoread® system. We do not intend to rent LaserCyte
instruments. At earlier stages in the life cycle of this product, a substantial portion of LaserCyte placements will be made at
veterinary clinics that already own our QBC® VetAutoread™ instruments. As a result, net consumables sales are not likely
to grow significantly in the near future, as we expect the increase in LaserCyte consumable sales to be largely offset by
declines in saies of QBC® VetAutoread™ consumables. However, we believe that the enhanced diagnostic capabiiities of the
LaserCyte system will lead veterinarians to perform more in-clinic hematclogy testing, which will increase consumables
sales as our installed base of LaserCyte systems increases. [n addition, since we produce the LaserCyte consumables, the
profitability of these consumables is greater than the profitability of the QBC® VetAutoread™ consumables, which we
purchase as finished products.

With all of our instrument lines, we seek to differentiate our products based on superior system capability, quality of
diagnostic information, reliability and customer service. Our equipment and consumables typically are sold at 2 premium
price to competitive offerings. Our success depends on our ability to maintain a premium price strategy. In addition, our in-
clinic instrumentation competes with cutside laboratory services for similar diagnostic information, and such services are
typically offered at a lower cost. Therefere, our success also depends on cur ability to market the relative attractiveness of in-
clinic diagnostic testing, versus less convenient and timely, but lower priced, laboratory testing.
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Laboratory Services. We believe that more than half of all diagnostic testing by U.S. veterinarians is done at outside
reference laboratories such as our IDEXX Laboratory Services laboratories. We attempt to differentiate our laboratory
testing services from those of our competitors primarily on the basis of quality, customer service and technology. Revenue
growth in this business is achieved both through increased sales at existing laboratories and through the acquisition of new
customers. Profitability of this business is largely the result of our ability to achieve efficiencies from both volume and
operational imprevements.

Rapid Assays. Our rapid assay business comprises single-use kits for in-clinic testing and microwell-based kits for
large clinic and laboratory testing for canine and feline diseases and conditions. Our two principal product lines are canine
heartworm products (which include the SNAP 3Dx heartworm antigen, EArlichia canis and Lyme antibody combination test)
and the SNAP FIV antibody/Fel.V antigen combination test. Our rapid assay strategy is to develop, manufacture, market and
sell proprietary tests with superior performance that address important medical needs. As in our other lines of business, we
also seek to differentiate our products through superior customer support. These products carry price premiums over
competitive products that do not offer equivalent performance and diagnostic capabilities, and which do not include a similar
level of support. We augment our product development and customer service efforts with marketing programs that enhance
medical awareness and understanding regarding our target diseases and the importance of diagnostic testing.

Food and Environmental Group

Water and Dairy Testing. Our strategy in the water testing business is to develop, manufacture, market and sell
proprietary products with superior performance, supported by exceptional customer service. Our customers are primarily
water utilities to whom strong relaticnships and customer support are very important. Over the past several years the rate of
growth of this product line has slowed from over 20% tc approximately 10% in 2002. The decline in growth rate is the result
of increased competiticn and market penetration. International sales of water testing products represent 36% of total water
product sales and we expect that future growth in this business will be significantly dependent on our ability to increase
international sales. Growth also will be dependent on our ability to enhance and broaden our product line. Most water
microbiological testing is driven by regulation, and in many countries a test may not be used for regulatory testing unless it
has been approved by the applicable regulatory body. As a result, we maintain an active regulatory program under which we
are seeking regulatory approvals in a number of countries, primarily in Europe. We follow a similar strategy in marketing and
selling our dairy testing products.

Production Animal Services. We develop, manufacture, market and sell a broad range of tests for various poultry,
cattle and swine diseases and conditions, and have an active research and development and in-licensing program in this area.
Our strategy is to offer proprietary tests with superior perfermance characteristics. Disease outbreaks are episodic and
unpredictable and certain diseases that are prevalent at one time may be substantially contained or eradicated. In response to
outbreaks, testing initiatives may lead tc exceptional demand for certain products in certain periods. Conversely, successful
eradication programs may result in significantly decreased demand for certain products. The performance of this business,
therefore, can be subject to fluctuation. In 2002, approximately 64% of our sales in this business were international. Because
of the significant dependence of this business on international sales, the performance of the business is particularly subject to
the various risks described below that are associated with doing business internationally.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to customer programs and incentives, product returns, bad debts, inventories,
investments, intangible assets, income taxes, warranty obligations, restructuring and contingencies and litigation. We base
our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ fram these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies reflect cur more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consclidated financial statements.
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Inventory

QOur inventories include material, labor and overhead, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
We write down inventory for estimated obsolescence when warranted by our estimates of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those estimated by management, additional inventory write-
downs may be required, which would have a negative effect on our results of operations. Certain major components of ocur
inventory are discussed in more detail below.

Nitazoxanide. Our nitazoxanide product for the treatment of equine protozcal myeloencephalitis ("EPM”) is in
registration with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”). We have completed the manufacturing, efficacy and
safety components of our submission, and in February 2003 we submitted revised labeling and Freedom of Information Act
summary information as requested by the FDA. Our inventories as of December 31, 2002 included $8.4 million of inventory
asseciated with the nitazoxanide product, consisting of $8.3 miilion of active ingredient and $0.1 million of other raw
materials. The $8.3 million of active ingredient included in inventory at December 31, 2002 will expire in 2005. In 2002 the
manufacturer of the active ingredient submitted additional stability data to the FDA, which supported extending the shelf life
of the active ingredient from 48 to 60 months from the date of manufacture. Upcn use of unexpired active ingredient in the
manufacture of finished goods, the active ingredient shelf life is no longer relevant. The shelf life of the finished goods is
measured from the date of manufacture, regardless of the age of the active ingredient used to manufacture the finished goods.
Based on stability data that we have submitted to the FDA, we believe that the sheif life of the finished gocds will be at least
36 months if and when the product is approved by the FDA.

We evaluate our nitazoxanide inventory on a quarterly basis for realizability. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we incurred no further write-downs for this inventory due to expected product expiration. Our quarterly evaluation is
based upon the expiration dates described, assumptions regarding the timing of FDA approval and our launch of the preduct
and assumptions regarding sales volumes that we expect to achieve following approval and launch of the product. We believe
that the product will be approved in late 2003 and launched shortly thereafter, that the worldwide market for EPM treatments
is approximately $50 million annually, and that our nitazoxanide product will capture approximately 25-40% of that market
over four years following launch. Should FDA approval be delayed beyond 2003 cr should sales volumes be lower than those
assumed, additional active ingredient would expire and would need to be written off. For example, if FDA approval was
obtained in late 2003, but sales volumes over the next four years were fifty percent lower than anticipated, and assuming a
shelf life of 36 menths for finished geods inventory, approximately $0.5 million of additicnal inventory would expire and
require a charge to operations.

If we do not receive FDA approval of the nitazoxanide product, and if we then elect to terminate our license to use
the active ingredient, we have the right to require our supplier to repurchase the active ingredient at a price equal to cur cost.
We have no assurances that our supplier has the financial ability to repurchase all of this inventory. To the extent we were
unable to sell the active ingredient to our supplier, we would incur a loss in the amount of any unrecovered costs of the active
ingredient. This could result in a loss of up to the full value of our net inventory, or $8.4 million as of December 31, 2002.

VetTest® Slides. Our inventories as of December 31, 2002 inciuded $30.2 million of slides used in our VetTest
chemistry instruments, which represents approximately 1.3 turns based on recent historical usage. Most of the slides have a
shelf life of 24 months at the date of manufacture. The average remaining shelf life at December 31, 2002 was 16.9 months.
In addition, we are required to purchase a minimum of $232.4 million of slides over the remaining life of cur contract with
Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc. (*Ortho”), which expires on December 31, 2010, although our purchase obligation may be
extended at our option through December 31, 2011.

We evaluate potential losses over the life of the Ortho contract on a quarterly basis. Our quarterly evaluation is
based on an estimate of the value of slides that we are required to purchase under the contract but that will expire before sale.
The estimated loss is calculated based cn the expiration dating described, and an evaluation of our minimum centractual
purchase obligations relative to assumptions regarding (i) the per-customer growth in demand for slides over the life of the
contract, and (ii) changes over the life of the contract in the size of our installed base of VetTest customers resuiting from (a)
new VetTest instrument placements by us and (b) loss of customers whe switch to other chemistry analyzers supplied by
IDEXX or its competitors. We have assumed that the rate of growth of end customer unit sales of VetTest slides, which grew
appreximately 7% in 2002, will decline over the life of the Orthe contract due to the impact of the factors described in the
preceding sentence.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2002, we amended the contract with OCD to reduce our minimum purchase
commitment for both 2002 and the life of the contract by 30 million slides (or approximately $17.7 million) in consideration
for our agreement to forego approximately $2.0 million of certain volume rebates on slides purchased in 2002. As a result of
this amendment, we do not believe we will incur a loss on the contract and we have reversed the previously established
contract loss reserve of $0.7 million, of which $0.4 million was provided in 2002. However, if our assumptions regarding the
per-customer demand for slides or the changes in the installed base of VetTest instruments are incorrect, we could incur loss
on this contract. For example, if we experienced no per-customer growth in demand for slides through the contract term, we
would incur a loss of approximately $0.1 million.

LaserCyte hematology instrument. As of December 31, 2002, our inventories included $8.3 million of component
parts and finished goods associated with our LaserCyte hematology instrument, which we began shipping to customers in
November 2002. In addition, we have placed $0.9 million in deposits with vendors to secure additional critical components
and we have firm purchase commitments of an additional $2.1 million. We expect to fully realize our investment and
purchase commitments. However, if we alter the design of this product, we may be required to write off some or all of the
associated inventory.

The nitazoxanide, VetTest slides and LaserCyte products are included in our CAG segment.
Valuation of Long-lived and Intangible Assets and Goodwill

We assess the impairment of identifiable intangibles, long-lived assets and goodwill whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we consider important that could trigger an
impairment review include but are not limited to the following:

o significant under-performance relative to historical or projected future operating results;

o failure to obtain regulatory approval of certain products;

o significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business;
o significant negative industry or economic trends; and

o significant advancements or changes in technology.

When we determine that the carrying value of intangibles, long-lived assets and goodwill may not be recoverable
based on a change in events and circumstances discussed above, we measure any impairment based on factors such as
projected cash flows. Net intangible assets and goodwill amounted to $56.2 million as of December 31, 2002, consisting of
$23.7 million related to veterinary laboratories (of which $23.4 million represents goodwill), $15.8 million related to water
test products {of which $13.5 million represents goodwill), $14.5 million related to veterinary pharmaceutical products (of
which $13.7 million represents goodwill) and $2.2 million of other (of which $1.7 million represents goodwill).

In 2002, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No. 142 and as a
result, we ceased to amortize goodwill, but continued to amortize all other intangibles. We had recorded approximately $5.0
million of goodwill amortization on these amounts during the year ended December 31, 2001 and would have recorded
approximately $4.5 million of goodwill amortization during the same period in 2002, if the existing standards had been
continued. In addition, we recorded $1.5 million of other intangible amortization during the year ended December 31, 2001
and $0.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2002. In lieu of goodwill amortization, we were required to perform an
initial impairment review of our goodwill in 2002 and are now required to perform annual impairment reviews. No
impairment was found as a result of either our initial impairment review or our 2002 year-end review.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements” (*SAB No. 101"). SAB No. 101 requires that four criteria are met before revenue is recognized. These
include (i) persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (iii) the

seller’s price is fixed and determinable, and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

o We recognize revenue at the time of shipment (including to distributors) for substantially all products, as title and
risk of loss pass to the customer on delivery to the common carrier.
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o We recognize revenue on sales to leasing companies after the instrument or practice information management
system is installed and the customer has accepted the instrument or system.

o We recognize revenue on sales of certain instruments after the instrument is installed, where installation is
considered essential to the usability of the instrument, and the customer has accepted the instrument.

o We recognize service revenue at the time the service is performed.
o We recognize revenue associated with extended maintenance agreements ratably over the life of the contracts.

o We recognize revenue from non-cancelable software licenses and hardware systems upen installation of the
software (and compietion of training if applicable) or hardware because at this time collection is probable and we
have no significant further obligations.

o We recegnize revenue on certain instrument systems under rental programs over the life of the rental agreement.

When instruments are scld together with extended maintenance agreements, we allocate revenue to the extended
maintenance agreement (the undelivered element) based on amcunts charged separately to similar customers and recognize
those revenues ratably over the period of the agreement. The residual value is recognized as instrument revenue when
appropriate under the policies described above. Shipping costs reimbursed by the customer are included in revenue and cost
of sales.

We record estimated reductions to revenue in connection with customer programs and incentive offerings, which
may give customers future rights such as free or disccunted goods or services or trade-in rights. We estimate these
reductions based on our experience with similar customer programs in prior years. Our distributors do not have the right to
return preducts.

We recognize revenue only in those situations where collection from the customer is probable. We maintain
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated Iosses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required
payments. We base our estimates on our historical ccllection and write-off experience, current trends, credit pelicy, detailed
analysis of specific client situations and percentage of our accounts receivable by aging category. If the financial conditicn of
our customers were to deteriorate, resuiting in an impairment of their ability tc make payment, additional aliowances would
be required.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. This statement requires that
we recognize a current tax liability or asset for current taxes payable or refundable and a deferred tax liability or asset for the
estimated future tax effects of temperary differences and carryforwards to the extent they are realizable. We record a
valuation aliowance to reduce cur deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. We have
recorded a valuation allowance on certain deferred tax assets that relate tc international net cperating loss carryforwards.
While we have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the
need for the valuation allowance, in the event we were to determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in
the future in excess of the net recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income in the period
such determination was made. Likewise, should we determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of our net
deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to income in the period such
determination was made.

We do not provide for U.S. income taxes on earnings of our subsidiaries outside of the U.S. As of December 31,
2002, we had unremitted earnings in subsidiaries outside the U.S. of $44.8 million, on which no U.S. taxes have been
provided. Our intention is to reinvest these earnings permanently or to repatriate the earnings only when tax-effective to do
sc. It is not practical to estimate the amount of additional taxes that might be payable upon repatriation of foreign earnings.

Warranty Reserves
We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. Our actual warranty
obligation is affected by product failure rates and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should

actual product failure rates or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, which are based on historical data and
engineering estimates, where applicable, revisions to the estimated warranty lability would be required. As of December 31,
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2002, we had accrued $343,000 for estimated warranty expense. Warranty expense was $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

We launched our LaserCyte system in October 2002, and expect sales will increase in 2003 and beyond. We expect
that sales of this system will cause warranty expense to increase significantly in 2003. We will charge warranty expense to
the cost of LaserCyte sales based upon our experience with instrument sales and engineering information about the system.
Should actual warranty expense exceed our estimates, our cost of sales of LaserCyte systems would increase.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001

Revenue

Total Company. Revenue for the total company increased $26.6 million, or 7%, to $412.7 million from $386.1 millicn
in the same period of the prior year. The fcllowing table presents revenue for the Company and its operating segments:

Percentage
Net Sales (in thousands) 20601 2002 Dollar Change Change
CAG.........co $ 308,048 $ 326,897 $ 18,849 6%
FEG.....o..ooo i 78,033 85,773 7,740 10%
Total....................... $ 386,081 § 412,670 $ 26,589 7%

Companion Animal Group. Revenue for CAG increased $18.8 million, or 6%, to $326.9 million from $308.0
million in the same period of the prior year. An increase in sales of laboratory services (approximately $7.3 million, or 10%)
resulted primarily from higher volume worldwide and, to a lesser extent, price increases in the U. S. and the impact of
currency exchange rates on sales at our laboratories outside the U.S.

An increase in sales of instrument consumables (approximately $6.2 million, or 6%) resulted primarily from
increased unit sales of VetTest slides worldwide and, to a lesser extent, the impact of currency exchange rates on sales
outside of the U.S. The increase in revenues was positively impacted by depressed 2001 sales that resulted from a late 2000
marketing program that pulled sales into 2000. Revenues were negatively impacted due to a decrease in distributor
inventories of instrument consumables in 2002. We believe, however, that reported growth in consumables sales
approximates the underlying growth rate after adjusting for these two factors. Sales of LaserCyte, a hematology instrument
introduced in October 2002, contributed $1.9 million to the revenue increase.

An increase in sales of rapid assay products (approximately $3.1 million, or 5%) resulted primarily from increased
clinic-level sales of canine heartworm and feline test kits, offset primarily by the negative impact of changes in distributor
inventory levels (which increased $1.5 million in 2001 and decreased $3.1 million in 2002), and increased accruals on sales
of canine heartworm test kits due to higher customer participation in a volume rebate program. After adjusting for these
changes in distributor inventory levels, sales of rapid assay products would have increased approximately $7.8 million, or
12%.

An increase in sales of veterinary practice management software and services (approximately $1.4 million, or 7%),
resulted primarily from higher volume of complete system sales, and increased hardware upgrade sales.

Offsetting these increases were reduced sales of our QBC® VetAutoread™ hematology instrument (approximately
$1.2 million, or 16%), primarily due to a shift in marketing and customer focus to the LaserCyte system. Sales of
pharmaceutical products decreased slightly due to a decline in sales of the Company's ACAREXX feline ear mite treatment,
offset partially by increased sales of PZI VET insulin, which was launched on a commercial basis in 2002.

Food and Environmental Group. Revenue for FEG increased $7.7 million, or 10%, to $85.8 million from $78.0
million for the same period of the prior year. An increase in sales of poultry and livestock tests (approximately $4.9 million,
or 22%) resulted primarily from higher unit sales of livestock products and, to a lesser extent, price increases on livestock
products and the impact of currency exchange rates on sales outside of the U.S. Approximately half of the increased sales of
livestock preducts were the result of government sponsored testing initiatives in Germany, which may not continue through
2003.
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An increase in sales of water testing products (approximately $3.7 million, or 10%) resulted primarily from
increased unit sales volume in Europe and the Americas and, to a lesser extent, price increases in the U.S. A decrease in saies
of dairy testing products (approximately $0.8 million or 5%) was primarily attributable tc lower unit sales volume as a resuit
of increased competition.

Gross Profit

Total Company. Gross prefit for the totai company increased $9.4 million, or 5%, to $192.7 million from $183.3
millicn for the same period in the prior year. As a percentage of total company revenue, gross profit remained flat at 47%.
The following table presents gross profit and gross profit percentage for the Company and its operating segments:

Percent of Percent of
Gross Profit (in thousands) 2001 Sales 2002 Sales
CAG..co.coiiieiiii i, $ 137,782 45% $ 142,726 44%
FEG......oovviiiiieiinn 45,549 58% 49,999 58%
Total........oovvveeninnnn $ 183,331 47% $ 192,725 47%

Companion Animal Group. Gross profit for CAG increased $4.9 million, or 4%, to $142.7 million from $137.8
million in the same pericd of the prior year, primarily due to increased sales volume across the CAG product lines, partially
offset by a reducticn in the gross profit percentage. As a percentage of CAG revenue, gross profit declined from 45% for the
same period in the prior year to 44%. The decrease in gross profit percentage was aitributable primarily to foreign exchange
hedge contract losses in the current peried compared to gains in the prior peried; increased amortizaticn due te additional
placements of VetTest instruments in our rental and trade-up programs; and a net unfavorable change in manufacturing
variances. These factors were offset partially by productivity improvements across CAG product lines, partly due to
increased revenue spread against the fixed cost portion of our expense base; the positive impact of the strengthening of the
Euro and British Pound on sales denominated in these currencies; reversal of an accrual for potential loss on cur VetTest
slide supply agreement with Ortho as a result of a reduction in our minimum purchase obligations under the agreement; and
higher prices, primarily on laboratory services and feline test kits.

Food and Envirenmental Group. Gross profit for FEG increased $4.5 million, or 10%, to $50.0 million from
$45.5 million for the same pericd in the prior year, primarily due to increased sales volume across the FEG product lines. As
a percentage of FEG revenue, gross profit was unchanged at 58%. Gross profit percentage benefited from a favorable mix of
higher margin poultry and livestock products, higher prices for water testing and livestock products, and the positive impact
of the strengthening of the Euro and British Pound on revenue. These increases were offset by higher inventory writedowns
of certain dairy products and royalty accruals on certain livestock products.

Operating Expenses
Total Company. Total company operating expenses increased $0.1 million to $126.9 from $126.8 million for the

same period of the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, operating expenses declined tc 31% from 33%. The following
tables present operating expenses and operating income for the Company and its operating segments:

Operating Expenses Percentage of Percentage of Doltar Percentage
{in thousands) 2001 Sales 2002 Sales Change Change
CAG i $ 101,183 33% $ 96,674 30% $ (4,509) (4%)
FEG..ooiioiiiiee 22,873 29% 23,959 28% 1,086 5%
Other..........cccoveneee 2,723 N/A 6.277 N/A 3.554 131%
Total....o.oooonviinninn $ 126,779 33% $ 126,910 31% $ 131 0%
Operating Inceme Percentage of Percentage of Dollar Percentage
(in thousands) 2001 Sales 2002 Sales Change Change
CAG. ..ot $ 36,599 12% $ 46,052 14% $ 9,453 26%
FEG. oo 22,676 29% 26,040 30% 3,364 15%
Other..........ooevininn. (2,723) N/A (6,277) N/A (3,554) 131%
Total....cooieiiniinn $ 56,552 15% $ 65,815 16% $ 9,263 16%
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Companion Animal Group. Operating expenses for CAG decreased $4.5 million, or 4%, to $96.7 million from
$101.2 million in the same period of the prior year. This decrease resulted primarily frem the impact of adoption of SFAS
No. 142 (under which the Company ceased amortizing goodwill); a reduction in severance and related costs; a reduction in
marketing expense associated with feline diagnostic products (due to a direct to consumer marketing campaign in 2001); a
reduction in bad debt expense; and savings from the consolidation of our pharmaceuticals and companion animal diagnostics
sales forces. These decreases were offset partially by increased spending on sales and marketing (including the unfavorable
impact of foreign exchange) to support higher sales volumes; litigation spending, net of a settlement received, related to the
Company’s patent infringement lawsuit against Abaxis, Inc. and S.A. Scientific, Inc.; and increased research and
development expenses.

Foed and Environmental Group. Operating expenses for FEG increased $1.1 million, or 5%, to $24.0 million
from $22.9 million in the same peried of the prior year. Increased expenses resulted primarily from the write-off of non-
performing intangible assets (primarily associated with the 2000 acquisition of Genera Technologies Limited); higher
litigation, infrastructure and other administrative expenses; the unfavorable impact of foreign exchange; and increased
research and development expenses. These increases were offset partially by the impact of adoption of SFAS No. 142 and a
reduction in bad debt expense.

Other. Operating expenses for other, which consist of $2.9 million in corporate research and development and $3.4
million in charges related to our Chief Executive Officer succession, increased $3.6 million to $6.3 million from $2.7 million
in the same period of the prior year. The increase resulted primarily from severance and related benefits provided in
connection with the retirement of our Founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in January 2002. Under an
employment agreement, we are required to make certain payments to our former Chief Executive Officer and provide certain
benefits to him following his retirement and the succession to our new Chief Executive Officer. During 2002 we incurred
charges under this agreement of $3.4 million, of which $1.8 million was non-cash.

Interest Income, Net

Net interest income was $3.0 million for 2002 compared with $2.2 million during 2001. The increase was due to
higher invested cash balances and the receipt of $0.3 million in interest on a domestic tax refund. These increases were
partially offset by lower effective interest rates.

Provision For Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 34% for 2002 compared with 36% for 2001. The reduction in the effective tax rate was
primarily due to the elimination of non-deductible goodwill associated with the adoption of SFAS No. 142.

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2000
Revenue
Total Company. Revenue for the total company increased $18 million, or 5%, to $386.1 million from $367.4

million in the same period of the prior year. The following table presents revenue for the Company and its operating
segments:

Percentage
Net Sales (in thousands) 2000 2001 Dollar Change Change
CAG. ..., $ 295,740 % 308,048 $ 12,308 4%
FEG....coocoviviiinn 71,692 78,033 6,341 9%
Total.......ooooeininns $ 367,432 § 386,081 $ 18,649 5%

Companion Animal Group. Revenue for CAG increased $12.3 million, or 4%, to $308.0 million from $295.7
million in 2000. An increase in sales of veterinary reference laboratory services (approximately $7.7 million, or 12%)
resulted primarily from incremental sales associated with our acquisiticn of Veterinary Pathelogy Services Pty. Ltd. ("VPS”)
in July 2000 and from higher volume at laboratories in existence during both reporting periods. A decrease in sales of
VetTest slides (approximately $4.0 million, or 4%) resulted primarily from the negative impact of changes in distributor
inventory levels and a late 2000 marketing program that pulled sales into 2000 from 2001, offset partially by growth in
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clinic-level sales. An increase in sales of canine test kits (approximately $2.1 million, or 6%) resulted primarily from
increased sales of our Canine SNAP 3Dx combination test, which we introduced in March 2001. Sales of ACAREXX in
2001 (approximately $2.3 miilicn) were largely incremental tc 2000 because we launched this product in December 2000. In
aggregate, unfavorable exchange rates negatively impacted total CAG revenue by approximately $4.6 million, or 2%.

Food and Environmental Group. Revenue for FEG increased $6.3 million, or 9%, to $78.0 million from $71.7
million in 20600. An increase in sales of water testing products (approximately $7.4 million, or 25%) resulted primarily from
incremental revenue associated with the acquisition of Genera Technologies Limited (“Genera”) in August 2000. A decrease
in sales of dairy testing products (approximately $1.4 million, or 8%) was primarily attributable to the elimination of our
LacTek product in the second quarter of 2001, increased competition, and lack of product availability due to manufacturing
issues. A decrease in sales of food testing products (approximately $0.8 miilion, or 99%) was primarily due to the divestiture
of the food microbiclogy testing business in the first quarter of 2000.

Gross Profit

Total Company. Gross profit for the total company increased 6.1 million, or 4%, to $183.23 million from $177.2
million for the same peried in the prior year. As a percentage of total company revenue, gross profit declined from 48% to
47%. The following table presents gross prefit and gross profit percentage for the Company and iis operating segments:

Percent of Percent of
Gross Profit (in thousands) 2000 Sales 2001 Sales
CAG......oooii $ 136,281 46% $ 137,782 45%
FEG......ooiiiiin 40,895 57% 45,549 58%
Total...........coovininn $ 177,176 48% $ 183,331 47%

Companion Animal Group. Gross profit for CAG increased $1.5 million, or 1%, tc $137.8 million, from $136.3
millicn in the same period of the prior year. Gross profit as a percent of CAG revenue decreased to 45% from 46% in 2000,
Improved margins on veterinary reference laboratory services and the veterinary practice information management software
product line were offset by our inability to absorb fixed costs as a result of delays in the launch of our nitazoxanide new
animal drug and our LaserCyte hematology instrument and by unfaverable exchange rates. The increased margins from
veterinary reference lahoratory services were attributable primarily to cost savings from process automaticn and reduced
courier costs. The increase in margin from the veterinary practice management software product line was attributable
primarily to infrastructure reductions in our veterinary Internet portal and customer service operations.

Food and Environmental Group. Gross profit for FEG increased $4.6 million, or 11%, to $45.5 million from
$40.9 million in the same pericd of the prior year. Gross profit as a percent of FEG revenue increased to 58% from 57% in
2000. The increase in gross margin percentage was attributable primarily to increased sales of higher margin water testing
products, including those products from Genera, partially offset by decreased margins on dairy testing products due to our
inability to absorb fixed costs as a result of lower manufacturing velumes.

Operating Expenses
Total Company. Total company operating expenses increased $2.9 million, from $123.9 million to $126.8 million

for the same pericd of the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, operating expenses declined from 34% to 33%. The
following tables present operating expenses and operating income for the Company and its operating segments:

Operating Expenses Percentage of Percentage of Dollar Percentage
(in thousands) 2000 Sales 2001 Sales Change Change
CAG ...cooiiiiin, $ 100,074 34% $ 101,183 33% $ 1,109 1%
FEG .., 21,734 30% 22,873 29% 1,139 5%
Other .......ocovvviiiin, 2,117 N/A 2,723 N/A 606 29%
Total .oocoviriiii, $ 123,925 34% $ 126,779 33% $ 2,854 2%
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Operating Income Percentage of Percentage of Dollar Percentage
(in thousands) 2000 Sales 2001 Sales Change Change
CAG ... $ 36,207 12% $ 36,599 12% $ 392 1%
FEG ... 19,161 27% 22,676 29% 3,515 18%
Other .....coooveviniieieeenn (2,117) N/A (2.723) N/A (606) 29%
Total ..o $ 53,251 14% $ 56,552 15% $ 3,301 6%

Companion Animal Group. Operating expenses relating to CAG increased $1.1 million, or 1% to $101.2 million
from $100.1 million in 2000. The increase was attributable primarily to an increase in veterinary diagnostic sales personnel
and related overhead, offset by a decrease in expenses relating to our veterinary practice information management software
product line.

Food and Environmental Group. Operating expenses relating to FEG increased $1.1 miilion, or 5%, to $22.8
million from $21.7 million in 2000. The increase was attributable primarily to incremental operating expenses and
amortization associated with the acquisition of Genera and a $1.5 million one-time gain on the sale of the food product lines
that was recorded as a reduction of operating expenses in 2000, partially offset by the elimination of operating expenses
associated with the food product lines.

Other. Operating expenses for other, which consists of corporate research and development, increased $0.6 million
to $2.7 million from $2.1 million in the same period of the prior year. The increase resulted primarily from incremental
resources and related overhead expenses and lower allocated costs to CAG and FEG in 2001 compared to 2000.

Interest Income, Net

Net interest income was $2.2 million for 2001 compared with $5.0 million during 2000. The decrease in interest
income was mainly due to lower invested cash balances as well as lower effective interest rates.

Provision For Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 36% for 2001 compared with 37% for 2000. The reduction in the effective tax rate was
the result of continued realization of tax benefits resulting from business operations in jurisdictions with lower effective
income tax rates.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONCGUNCEMENTS

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144"). Adoption of SFAS No. 144 is required for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 144, effective January 2002.
The adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” ("SFAS No. 145"). SFAS No. 145 rescinds FASB SFAS No. 4, “Reporting
Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,” and an amendment of SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to
Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS No. 145 also rescinds SFAS No. 44, “Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor
Carriers.” SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between the required
accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic
effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS No. 145 also amends other existing authoritative
pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed
conditions. Adoption of certain provisions of SFAS No. 145 was required after May 15, 2002, while other provisions must be
adopted with financial statements issued after May 15, 2002 or the year beginning after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS
No. 145 did not have a material impact on the operations of the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
(“SFAS No. 146"). This Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” Adoption of
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SFAS No. 146 is required for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect
adoption of SFAS Ne. 146 to have material impact on its operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No.
148”). This Statement provides alternative methods of transition for a veluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Additicnally, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of
Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We have adopted
the additicnal disclosure provisions of this statement required for the year ended December 31, 2002 and will include the
prescribed additional disclosures in our future filings on Form 10-Q.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and
107 and rescissien of FASB Interpretation No. 34” (“FIN No. 45”). FIN No. 45 requires that a guarantor recognize, at the
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken by issuing the guarantee. FIN No. 45 also
requires additional disclosures tc be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligation
under certain guarantees it has issued. The accounting requirements for the initial recognition of guarantees are applicable on
a prospective basis for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for
all guarantees cutstanding, regardless of when they were issued or modified, for financial statements for interim or annual
periods ending after December 15, 2002. We have adopted the additional disclosure provisions of this statement required for
the year ended December 31, 2002 and will adapt the accounting requirements effective January 1, 2603.

In November 2002, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force reached consensus on EITF No. 00-21, “Accounting
for Revenue Arrangements with Muitiple Deliverables” (“EITF Ne. 00-21"). EITF No. 00-21 addresses the accounting
treatment for arrangements that provide for the delivery or performance of multiple products or services where the delivery
of a product, system or separation of the multiple deliverables that meet certain requirements into individual units of
accounting that are accounted for separately under the appropriate autheritative accounting literature. EIFT No. 00-21 is
applicable to revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not
expect the provisions of EIFT Ne. 00-21 tc have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We fund the capital needs of our business through cash generated from operations. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
we had $147.2 million and $79.6 miliion of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, respectively, and working
capital of $213.4 million and $164.2 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, we also had Iong-term
investments in debt securities of $15.6 million and $21.0 million, respectively.

In connection with the acquisition of Genera in August 2000, we issued $8.3 million in notes payable to a former
shareholder of Genera, of which $7.0 million was secured by cash in escrow, and the remaining $1.3 million was unsecured.
In April 2002, we repaid $7.5 million, of which $7.0 million was paid from the cash held in escrow. The remaining
unsecured portion of $1.0 million is noninterest bearing, has been discounted to yield 6% and is due in three annual
instaliments, beginning in August 2002. The noteholder elected to defer the August 2002 payment cf $0.5 million, which
now bears interest at 3% and is due on demand.

In September 2001 we entered into a $20.0 millicn uncommitted line of credit with a large multi-national bank.
Under the terms of this agreement the bank retained the right to approve all borrowings and all borrowings were due on
demand. Any borrowings under this line would have borne interest at the bank's prime rate. This agreement expired in
October 2002. There were no loans outstanding under this agreement at the time of expiration. In January 2003 we entered
into a $15.0 million uncemmitted line of credit with another large multi-national bank. Under the terms of this agreement, the
bank will retain the right to approve all borrowings and all borrowings will be due on demand. Any borrowings under this
line will bear interest at the mutually agreed upen rate at the time of borrowing.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a workers’ compensation insurance policy where the Company
retains the first $250,000 in claim liability per incident and up to $1.2 million in claim liability in the aggregate. The
insurance company administers and pays these claims and the Company reimburses the insurance company for the
Company's portion of these claims. The Company alsc agreed to issue a $450,000 letter of credit to the insurance company
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as security for these claims. Previously, the Company was fully insured for workers’ compensation liabilities. We do not
expect that this change in insurance coverage will have an unfavorable impact on our total workers’ compensation costs.

We purchased approximately $15.1 million in fixed assets and $2.4 miilion in other long term assets during the year
ended December 31, 2002, principally related to the CAG segment. Our total capital budget for 2003 is approximately $19.8
million. Research and development expense as a percentage of revenue for 2003 is expected to be consistent with 2002
levels. Under certain supply agreements with suppliers of veterinary instruments, slides for our VetTest instruments and
certain raw materials, at December 31, 2002 we had aggregate commitments to purchase approximately $72.4 million of
products in 2003.

Cash provided by operating activities was $103.3 million during 2002. Cash of $16.3 million was provided by an
increase in accrued expenses attributable primarily to increased liabilities for marketing programs, payroll, taxes, royalties,
and the CEO succession charge. Cash of $11.4 million was provided by use of inventory already in stock.

During 1999 and 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to ten million shares of our Comnmon
Stock in the open market or in negotiated transactions. During 2002, we repurchased 1,000,000 shares of our Common Stock
for $29.8 million. As of December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, approximately 7,024,000, 7,614,000 and 8,614,000 cumulative
shares, respectively, had been repurchased under this program. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

We are required to make the following payments in the years below:

(in thousands) Total 2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 After 2007
Note payable..............cciieiiiiiiniinns $ 973 § 973 $ - 3 - % -
Minimum royalty payments.................. 2,420 432 754 644 390
Operating leases.............c..coeceiniiene 25,427 5,675 9,329 6,920 3,503
Unconditional purchase obligations (1).... 258,572 72,362 83,190 61,020 42,000
Total contractual cash obligations......... . 8 287,392 § 79442 % 93273 § 68,584 $ 46,093

(1) Of this amount, $232.4 million represents our minimum purchase obligation under our VetTest slide supply agreement with Ortho.

We believe that current cash, short-term investments, long-term investments, debt facilities and funds generated
from operations will be sufficient to fund our operations for the foreseeable future.

FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

The future operating results of IDEXX involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Actual events or results may differ
materially from those discussed in this report. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not
limited to, the factors discussed below as well as those discussed elsewhere in this report.

IDEXX's Future Growth Depends on Several Factors

Our ability to grow our business in the future depends upon our ability to successfully implement various strategies,
including:

o developing, manufacturing and marketing new products with new features and capabilities, including
pharmaceutical products;

o expanding our market by increasing use of our products by our customers;

o

strengthening our sales and marketing activities in geographies outside of the U.S;

o

developing and implementing new technology development and licensing strategies; and

[e]

identifying and completing acquisitions that enhance our existing businesses or create new business areas for us.

However, we may not be able to successfully implement some or all of these strategies and increase or sustain our rate of
growth.
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The Markets in Which IDEXX Competes are Competitive and Subject to Rapid and Substantial
Technological Change

We face intense competition within the markets in which we sell our products and services. We expect that future
competition will become even more intense, and that we will have to compete with changing and improving technologies.
Some of cur competitors and potential competitors, including large pharmaceutical companies, have substantially greater
capital, manufacturing, marketing and research and development resources than we do.

IDEXX's Products and Services Are Subject to Various Government Regulations

In the U.S., the manufacture and sale of our products are regulated by agencies such as the U.S. Departiment of
Agricuiture (“USDA”), U.S. Feod and Drug Administraticn (‘FDA”) and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
("EPA”). Most diagnostic tests for animal health applications, including our canine, feline and poultry and livestock tests,
must be approved by the USDA prior to sale. Our water testing products must be approved by the EPA before they may be
used by customers in the U.S. as a part of a water quality monitoring program required by the EPA. Our pharmaceutical and
dairy testing products require approval by the FDA. Any failure to comply with regulatory requirements relating to the
manufacture and sale of cur products could result in fines and sanctions against us or removals of our products from the
market, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

We have entered into an agreement with the FDA under which we have agreed, among other things, to perform
specified lot release and stability testing of our SNAP Beta-lactam products and to provide related data to the FDA. If the
FDA were to determine that one or more lots of product failed to meet applicable criteria for product performance or stability,
the FDA could take various actions, including requiring us to recall products or restricting our ability to sell these products.
Sales of dairy antibictic residue testing products were $16.3 million in 2002.

Commerciaiizaticn of animal health pharmaceuticals in the U.S. requires pricr approval by the FDA. To obtain such
approvals we are required to submit substantial clinical, manufacturing and other data to the FDA. Regulatory approval for
products submitted to the FDA may take several years and fellowing approval, the FDA centinues to regulate all aspects of
the manufacture, labeling, storage, record keeping and promotion of pharmaceutical products. We have several animal
pharmaceutical products in registration with the FDA, including a nitazoxanide product for treatment of equine protozoal
myeloencephalitis and a non-stercidal anti-inflammatory for the treatment of lameness in horses. Failure to obtain, or delays
in obtaining, FDA approval for these products would have a negative impact on our future growth.

IDEXX's Future Operating Results May Be Negatively Impacted by Various Factors

Factors such as the introduction and market acceptance of new products and services, the mix of products and
services sold and the mix of domestic versus international revenue could negatively impact our future operating results.

We sell many of our products, including substantially all of the rapid assays and instrument consumables scld in the
U.S., through distributors. As a result, changes in the timing and size of distributor purchases can result in lower revenue for
us because our revenue for each quarter is usually generated from crders received during that quarter. Our financial
performance, therefore, is subject to an unexpected dewnturn in preduct demand and may be unpredictable.

While our pharmaceutical preducts are under development, we may carry related active ingredients, other raw
materials and finished geeds as assets on our balance sheet when recovery of the asset value from future sales is deemed
probable. To the extent that these inventories become unusable due to unanticipated delays in obtaining FDA approval for
these products, or to our failure te obtain such approvals, we may be required tc write down those inventories, which could
have a material adverse effect on cur results of operations. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”

We are actively developing new diagnostic platforms, including new instrument systems. In connection with these
programs, we are developing production machinery and equipment. As of December 31, 2002, we had $4.5 miilion of these
fixed assets on our balance sheet. Were we to discontinue any such programs, we would be required to write off the
associated preduction machinery and equipment. Such a write-off could have a material adverse effect on cur results of
operations.
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We believe that more than half of all veterinary diagnostic testing occurs in laboratories. Although we have a
significant laboratory business, our in-clinic testing business is more material to our results of cperations. If testing by
companion animal veterinarians generally were to shift towards increased laboratory testing and away from in-clinic testing,
this shift could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our expense levels are based in part on expectations of future revenue levels. Therefore, a loss in expected revenue
could result in a disproportionate decrease in our net income.

IDEXX's Success [s Heavily Dependent Upon Its Proprietary Technologies

We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, trademark and copyright law to protect our proprietary rights. If we
do not have adequate protection of our proprietary rights, our business may be affected by competitors who develop
substantially equivalent technologies that compete with us.

We cannot assure that we will obtain issued patents, that any patents issued or licensed to us will remain valid, or
that any patents owned or licensed by us will provide protection against competitors with similar technologies. Even if our
patents cover products sold by our competitors, the time and expense of litigating to enforce our patent rights could be
substantial, and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

In the past we have received notices claiming that our products infringe third-party patents and we may receive such
notices in the future. Patent litigation is complex and expensive and the outcome of patent litigation can be difficult to
predict. We cannot assure that we will win a patent litigation case or negotiate an acceptable resolution to such a case. If we
lose, we may be stopped from selling certain products and/or we may be required to pay damages and/or ongoing royalties as
a result of the lawsuit. Any such adverse result could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

IDEXX Purchases Materials for Its Products From a Limited Number of Sources

We currently purchase certain products and materials from single sources or a limited number of sources. Some of
the products that we purchase from these sources are proprietary, and therefore may not be available from other sources.
These products include our chemistry and hematology analyzers and related consumables, active ingredients for
pharmaceutical products and certain components of our SNAP devices and water testing products. If we are unable to obtain
adequate quantities of these products in the future, then we could face cost increases or reductions or delays in product
shipments, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

The slides sold for use in our VetTest instruments are purchased under an agreement with Ortho at fixed prices.
Under this agreement we are required to purchase a minimum of $232.4 million of slides over the remaining life of the
contract. To the extent that slides purchased under the contract exceed demand for the slides, we may incur lesses in the
future under this agreement. To the extent that we are unable to maintain current pricing levels on sales of slides to our
customers, cur profits on slide sales would decline because we purchase slides at fixed prices. See “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”

International Revenue Accounts for a Significant Portion of IDEXX's Total Revenue

Various risks associated with foreign operations may impact our international sales. Possible risks include
fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies, disruptions in transportation of our products, the differing product and service
needs of foreign customers, difficulties in building and managing foreign operations, import/export duties and quotas, and
unexpected regulatory, economic or political changes in foreign markets. Prices that we charge to foreign customers may be
different than the prices we charge for the same products in the U.S. due to competitive, market or other factors. As a result,
the mix of domestic and international sales in a particular period could have a material impact on our results for that period.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our financial market risk consists primarily of foreign currency exchange risk. We operate subsidiaries in 13

foreign countries and transact business in local currencies. We attempt to hedge our cash flow on intercompany sales to
minimize foreign currency exposure.
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The primary purpose of our foreign currency hedging activities is to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions. Corporate policy prescribes the range of allowable hedging activity. We primarily utilize
forward exchange contracts and options with a duration of less than 12 months. Gains and losses related to qualifying hedges
of foreign currency from commitments or anticipated transactions are deferred in prepaid expenses or accrued liabilities and
are included in the basis of the underlying transaction. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had $2.6 million in unrealized
losses on foreign exchange contracts designated as hedges.

Based on our overail currency rate exposure at December 31, 2002, including local currency revenues and expenses,
the impact of hedge contracts and bzlances denominated in a currency other than the Company’s or its subsidiaries’
functional currency, a 10% strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies will reduce operating income by
approximately $5.3 million and a 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies will reduce operating
income by approximately $0.4 million. A 10% strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies, excluding the
impact of hedge contracts currently in place, would reduce operating income by approximately $7.4 million and the effects of
a 10% weakening of U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies, excluding the impact of hedge contracts currently in place,
would increase operating income by approximately $7.4 million.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The response to this item is submitted as a separate sectiocn of this report commencing on Page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.
PART IIL.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information regquired by this [tem is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, pursuant to Regulation
14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference from the sections entitled
“Board of Directors” and “Election of Directors” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement with respect to its 2003
Annual Meeting of Stockhclders, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, pursuant to Regulation
14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled
“Executive Compensation and Related Informaticn” in the Company's definitive prexy statement with respect to its 2003
Annual Meeting of Stockhelders, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, pursuant to Regulation
14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference from the secticn entitled
“Ownership of Common Stock by Directors and Cfficers” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement with respect to its
2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required by this Item is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, pursuant to Regulation

14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is incorperated herein by reference from the secticn entitled
“Executive Compensation and Related Information —~ Emplcyment Agreements” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement
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with respect to its 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Based on their evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of a date within
90 days of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-X, the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial
officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and are operating in an effective
manner.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls. There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their most recent evaluation.

PART IV.
ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a)

(1) and {(2) The financial statements set forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and the Consolidated
Financial Statement Schedule are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-1.

b) Reports on Form 8-K
No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.

(@)(3) and (c) The exhibits in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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1)

2)

3)

CERTIFICATIONS

Date: March 20, 2003

I, Jonathan W. Ayers, certify that:

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc.
(the “Annual Report”);

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this Annual Report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 80 days prior to
the filing date of this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of
our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

/s/Jonathan W, Avers
Jonathan W. Ayers, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION

1)

3)

4

5)

1, Merilee Raines, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc.
(the “Annual Report”);

Based cn my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial conditicn, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the pericds presented in this Annual Report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclesure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a)

b)

c)

designed such disclosure conirols and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
pericd in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 80 days prior to
the filing date of this Annual Report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

presented in this Annual Repert our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I bave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which cculd adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of
our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
wezknesses.

Date: March 20, 2003 /s/Merilee Raines

Merilee Raines
Vice President, Finance and Treasurer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of September 23, 1998 among the Company, Blue Ridge Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. (“Blue Ridge”) and the stockholders of Blue Ridge (filed as Exhibit No. 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed October 15, 1998, File No. 0-19271 (“October 1998 Form 8-K"), and incorporated herein by reference.
Certain schedules and exhibits to the agreement (each of which are identified in the agreement) have been omitted
in reliance upon Rule 601(b){(2) of Regulation S-K. The Company hereby undertakes to furnish such schedules
and exhibits to the Commission supplementally upon Request.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (filed as Exhibit No. 3.1 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No. 0-19271, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company (filed as Exhibit No. 3.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2000, File No. 0-19271 (“September 2000 Form 10-Q"), and incorporated herein
by reference).

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2001, between the Company and American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company as Rights Agent, which includes as Exhibit A the Form of Certificate of
Designations, as Exhibit B the Form of Rights Certificate, and as Exhibit C the Summary of Rights to Purchase
Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit No. 1 to Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A dated
March 14, 2001, File No. 0-19271, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Warrant dated October 1, 1998 to purchase Common Stock of the Company issued to shareholders of
Blue Ridge other than employee shareholders (filed as Exhibit No. 4.1 to October 1998 Form 8-X, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Warrant dated October 1, 1998 to purchase Common Stock of the Company issued to employee
shareholders of Blue Ridge (filed as Exhibit No. 4.2 to October 1998 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Instruments with respect to other long-term debt of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are omitted
pursuant to Item 601 (b) (4) (iii) of Regulation S-K since the total amount authorized under each such omitted
instrument does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon request.

1984 Stock Option Plan of the Company, as amended (filed as Exhibit No. 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, File No. 0-19271 (“June 2001 Form 10-Q"), and incorporated herein by
reference).

1991 Stock Option Plan of the Company, as amended (filed as Exhibit No. 10.2 to Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001, File No. 0-19271 (“2001 Form 10-K"), and incorporated herein by
reference).

1991 Director Option Plan of the Company, as amended (filed as Exhibit No. 10.4 to June 2001 Form 10-Q, and
incorporated herein by reference).

1997 Director Option Plan of the Company, as amended, with the form of option agreement granted thereunder
attached thereto (filed as Exhibit No. 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997,
File No. 0-19271, and incorporated herein by reference).

1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Appendix B to Definitive Proxy Statement filed April 24, 1997,
File No. 0-19271 (“April 1997 Proxy”) and incorporated herein by reference).

1997 International Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Appendix C to April 1997 Proxy, and incorporated
herein by reference).

1999 Director Stock Plan of the Company (filed as Exhibit No. 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999, File No. 0-19271, and incorporated herein by reference).

U.S. Supply Agreement, effective as of January 1, 1999, between the Company and Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics,
Inc. (“Ortho”) (filed as Exhibit No. 10.2 to September 2000 Form 10-Q, and incorporated herein by reference).

European Supply Agreement, effective as of January 1, 1999, between the Company and Ortho (filed as Exhibit
No. 10.1 to September 2000 Form 10-Q, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Employment Agreement dated April 25, 1997 between the Company and Erwin F. Workman, Jr., Ph.D. (filed as
Exhibit No. 10.9 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 0-19271, and
incorporated herein by reference).

1998 Stock Incentive Plan of the Company, as amended (filed as Exhibit No. 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, File No. 0-19271, and incorparated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated October 17, 2001 between the Company and David E.
Shaw (filed as Exhibit No. 10.11 to 2001 Form 10-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

2000 Director Option Plan of the Company (filed as Exhibit No. 10.5 to June 2001 Form 10-Q, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Employment Agreement dated January 22, 2002 between the Company and Jonathan W. Ayers (filed as Exhibit
No. 10.13 to 2001 Form 10-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Executive Employment Agreement dated January 28, 2002 between the Company and jonathan W. Ayers (filed as
Exhibit No. 10.14 to 2001 Form 10-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May 23, 2001 between the Company and each of Louis
W. Pollock, Rabert S. Hulsy, Merilee Raines, Quentin Tonelli, S. Sam Fratoni and Conan R. Deady (filed as
Exhibit No. 10.6 to June 2001 Form 10-Q. and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment, Release and Settlement Agreement dated as of September 12, 2002 among the Company, IDEXX
Europe B.V., and Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the
period ended September 30, 2002, File No. 0-19271, and incorporated herein by reference).

Subsidiaries of the Company (filed herewith).
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (filed herewith).
Notice Regarding Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP (filed herewith).

Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (filed herewith).

Confidential treatment previously granted as to certain portions.
Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item
14(d) of Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of IDEXX Labeoratories, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 2002, and
the results of their cperations and their cash flows for the year then ended in confermity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we
plan and perferm the audit to chtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinien. The financial
statements of the Company as of December 31, 2001 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2001
were audited by other independent accountants who have ceased operations. Those independent accountants expressed an
unqualified opinicn on those financial statements, prior to the revision discussed in Note 1(d) in their report dated January 24,
2002,

As discussed in Note 1(d) to the consclidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed
its method of accounting for goodwill upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

As discussed above, the consclidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2001 and for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31, 20601 were audited by other independent accountants who have ceased
operations. As described in Note 1(d), these consclidated financial statements have been revised to inciude the transitional
disclosures required by SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was adopted by the Company as of
January 1, 2002. We audited the transitional disclosures in Note 1(d). In our opinion, the transitional disciosures for 2001 and
2000 in Note 1(d) are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review or apply any procedures to the 2001 or
2000 consolidated financial statements of the Company other than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinicn or any other form of assurance on the 2001 or 2000 consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

/s/PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 17, 2003
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated
financial statements and the schedule referred to below are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the resuits of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

/s/ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP (1)

Boston, Massachusetts
January 24, 2002

(1)  This is a copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with IDEXX Laboratories,
Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filing for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001. The inclusion of this
previously issued Arthur Andersen LLP report is pursuant to the “Temporary Final Rule and Final Rule Requirements
for Arthur Andersen LLP Auditing Clients,” issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission in March 2002. Note
that the previously issued Arthur Andersen LLP report includes references to certain fiscal years that are not required
to be presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2002. This audit report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with the filing of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. As described in Note 1(d}, the Company has presented the transitional disclosures for 2001 and
2000 required by SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The Arthur Andersen LLP report does not
extend to these changes to the 2001 and 2000 consolidated financial statements. The adjustments to the 2001 and 2000
consolidated financial statements referred to in Note 1(d) were reported on by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as stated
in their report appearing herein.




IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ($6,996 and $648 was restricted in 2001 and 2002, respectively).........
ShOrt-1eImm INVESHMEILS. ... oottt et e e et e e e et et e r e e et ecaanans
Accounts Receivable, less reserves of $3,993 and $2,415 in 2001 and 2002, respectively............
IVEIEOTIES. ... o e e e e e
Deferred inCOmMe taXes...........cocveiiniiviriiiiei e eeaeas
OHhEr CUITENE @SSBES. .. ... it ittt ittt e et et e et et e s e e a e e et et et e aenenae e
TOtal CUITENE @SSBIS. .. ...\ttt e e et e e e et e e et e e e aaas

Buildings........oooiiiiiii
Leasehold improvements. ...........oiiiiiii it et e
Machinery and eqUIPment. ...........ooooviiiiiiii
CONSTUCHION (N PEOGTESS. .. ..eiviniiiiniiieit e ciri it et e et e it e ab e e cea s eoia s
Office furniture and eqUIPMENt.............cccooiiiiiiiiii s

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. ...............cooeeeeiiiiiii

Long Term Assets:
Goodwill, net of accurnulated amortization of $29,969 and $29,348 for 2001 and 2002,
TESPECHVELY.....oviv i
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $3,277 and $4,373 for 2001 and 2002,
TESPRCHIVELY L..iuti i e
Other NON-CUITENT @SSEES, MBL......ivuiitivtiiriin ittt eais st te e e e e et ceae s anes

TOTAL ASSETS.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiier e s raa e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accoumts payable. ... ..o
ACCTUEA BXPEIISES. ...uuiviniiitsiitsiir ittt e iat it rt i tet s ettt e et b s caans et enn e s a et
Notes payable.........c.cooiiiiiiiiii
Deferred reVeMUE. . ... ..ot
Total Current Liabilities. ... .ocvviivuirinit e ea e eaane

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value; Authorized: 500 shares, none issued and outstanding............
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value; Designated: 100 shares of Preferred
Stock, none issued and outstanding..................ooo
Common Stock, $0.10 par value; Authorized: 60,000 shares; Issued and outstanding: 41,354
shares in 2001 and 42,331 shares in 2002...............ocoiiiiiiii
Additional paid in capital....................o
Retained @armings...........ccooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (l0SS)..........covvieviniciiii
Treasury stock (7,614 shares in 2001 and 8,650 shares in 2002), at COSt...........coovervneeiinreennenn.
Total Stockholders’ EQUity...............oooooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY ..c.ovvuiiiiviiiiniieiennninninnns

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2001 2002
$ 66,666 $ 113,788
12,893 33,403
50,772 45,689
86,194 75,086
14,239 14,887
4,812 6,267
235,576 289,120
21,016 15,572
1,189 1,195
5,011 5,144
19,566 22,290
45,242 45,296
5,991 5,863
31,703 35,521
108.702 115,300
59,487 65,854
49,215 49,455
50,738 52,321
4,470 3,836
12,092 6,348
67,300 62,505
$ 373,107 S 416,652
$ 10,887 $ 8,427
38,890 51,710
8,380 973
13,220 13,569
71,377 75,679
4,135 4,233
313,883 334,348
137,871 183,260
(6,694) 2,511)
(147,465) (178,357)
301,730 340,973
$ 373,107 3 416,652




CONSQOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue:

Product revenue..............ooeiiiiiiiiinciii s
SerVICe FEVENUE.. ... ..cevvvvviriiniiaienaneeiansennns

Cost of revenue:

Cost of product Tevenue............co.oeeveenninninn.
Cost of service revenue................................

Gross profit..........ooooviviiiiin

Expenses:

Sales and marketing....................c
General and administrative..............c...ccoeeve
Research and development............................
Income from operations................coccevunns
Interest income, net...........c..coeevvriiviiiininciniann,
Income before provisions for income taxes....
Provision for income taxes.................coovviniiniinn.
NetinCOME. ..vvvvvivitivrini e

Earnings per share:

BasiC. oo
Diluted......coovi i

Weighted average shares outstanding:

BasiC.. .o e

For the Years Ended December 31,

IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2000 2001 2002
280,485 289,934 308,651
86,947 96,147 104,019
367,432 386,081 412,670
119,213 128,643 143,768
71,043 74,107 76,177
190,256 202,750 219,945
177,176 183,331 192,725
54,956 57,087 56,794
40,677 41,266 40,787
28,292 28,426 29,329
53,251 56,552 65,815
4,996 2,229 2,955
58,247 58,781 68,770
21,615 21,161 23,381
36,632 37,620 45,389
1.06 1.13 1.35
1.02 1.09 1.30
34,574 33,293 33,622
36,081 34,640 35,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Common Steck Other Total
Number $0.10 Additional Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
of Shares Par Value Paid-in-Capital Earnings Inceme (Leoss) Stock Equity ‘

Balance January 1. 2000.................... 39,584 8 3958 § 284,459 $ 63,619 $ (3.473) $ (64.222) $ 284341
Issuance of common stock to Directors.. 1 - 10 - - -
Purchase of Treasury Stock................ - - - - - (70,257) (70,257)
Exercise of stock options {including tax
benefit).........ooviveieeiiiiii 670 67 12,445 - - - 12,512
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome..........cooveviiiieninnnan. - - - 36,632 -
Transiation adjustment.................. - - - - (1,491) - -
Total comprehensive income........... - - - - - - 35,141
Balance December 31, 2000............... 40,255 4,025 296,914 100,251 (4,964) (134,479) 261,747

Purchase of Treasury Stock................ - - - - - (12,986) (12,986)
Exercise of stock options (including tax
benefit)........ocoveeiniiiiinii e, 984 99 16,980 - - - 17,079
Shares issued in connection with Blue
Ridge acquisition............................ 115 11 (11) - - - -
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome..........coociviiinininnn - - - 37,620 - -
Unrealized gain on investments, net of
tax 0f $29.....occoiii - - - - 44 -
Unrealized loss on forward exchange
contracts, net of tax of $174............. - - - - (266) - -
Translation adjustment.................. - - - - (1,508) - -
Total comprehensive income. .......... - - - - - - 35,890
Balance December 31, 2001................ 41,354 4,135 313,883 137,871 (6,694) (147,465) 301,730

Issuance of common stock to Directors
Purchase of Treasury Stock................. - - - - {29,830) (29.830)
Exercise of stock options (including tax
benefit)........ooovieriiriiniii 960 96 20,467 - - (1,062) 19,501
Exercise of warrants......................... 17 2 2) - - -
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income.........ccooevvinveiinnininnn - - - 45,389 - -
Unrealized gain on investments, net of
tax of $70.......coiiiii, - - - - 107 -
Unrealized loss on forward exchange
contracts, net of tax of $699............. - - - - (1,428) - -
Translation adjustment.................. - - - - 5,504 - -
Total comprehensive income........... - - - - - - 49,572
Balance December 31, 2002............... 42,331 §$ 4,233 $ 334,348 $ 183,260 $ (2,511) § (178357) § 340973

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
N I COITIE. Lottt e et 36,632 37.620 $ 45,389
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.............ovvieicriiriniiiniincn e 19,481 22,229 20,124
Non-cash portion of CEQ succession charge.............ccccooveiiiiiieiinninnn, - - 1,836
Provision for (recoveries of) uncollectible accounts.....................ooeeveinnnn 647 547 (906)
Provision for (benefit of) deferred income tax...............cooeiiiiiiiiiiiinninnn. 3,098 (380) 3,750
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and disposals
Accounts receivable 430 5,007 7,800
INVENIOTIS ... e cee e e (28,506) (20,319) 11,405
Other current assets ‘ 1,869 407) {934)
Accounts payable............oiiiii i (8,534) (2,750) (1,590)
ACCTUEE EXPENSES. .. ...ttt 1,436 3,484 16,255
DeferTed TEVEIMUE. ... .ottt e 1,687 1,333 124
Net cash provided by operating activities..................ccoooon 28,240 46,364 103,253
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of short and long-term investments.............cc.ccovveiciivieiiiienee (83,876) (56,839) (33,605)
Sales and maturities of short and long-term investments................................. 127,032 52,200 18,716
Purchase of property and equipment................coooiiiiiiiii (15,520) (17,381) (15,087)
INCrease in Other ASSELS. ... .. .covviuiiiii et et e (1,866) (4.210) (2,444)
Proceeds from sale of business...............c.coovii i, 10,400 - -
Acquisition(s) of business(es), net of cash acquired..................cooooii (11,945) - (375)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities..................cocoeeen e 24,225 (26,230) (32,795)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayment of notes payable................c.ooooiiiiiii (3,322) (144) (7.462)
Purchase of Treasury StOCK...........cevviiiriiiiiniiii e (70,257) (12,986) (29,830)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options..................ooc 10,229 14,044 11,949
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities....................c.....es (63,350) 914 (25,343)
Net effect of Exchange Rate Changes...................ccooiiiiii (1,684) (389) 2,007
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..................o.coon (12,569) 20,659 47,122
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year........................ 58,576 46,007 66,666
Cash and cash equivalents end of year...................ooco 46,007 66,666 $ 113,788
Supplemental disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid during the year..................ccooiii 361 79 $ 38
Income taxes paid during the year.................cooi 12,966 19.476 $ 16,428
Supplemental disclosure of Non-cash investing and financing activity:
Receipt of note for sale of business.....................coo 450 - $ -
Issuance of notes for acquisition of Genera Technologies Ltd........................... 8,277 - 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE1 OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IDEXX Laborateries, Inc. and subsidiaries {the “Company”) develop, manufacture and distribute products and
provide services for the veterinary, food and environmental markets. In the veterinary market, the Company develops,
manufactures and distributes biclogy-based detection systems, develops and distributes veterinary pharmaceuticals and
chemistry-based detection systems, provides laboratory testing and specialized consulting services and develops and
distributes veterinary practice information management software systems and provides related services. In the food and
environmental market, the Company develops, manufactures and distributes biclogy-based detection systems. The
Cempany's products and services are sold worldwide.

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basts, the Company
evaluates its estimates, including those related to customer programs and incentives, product returns, bad debts, inventories,
investments, intangible assets, income taxes, warranty obligations, restructuring and contingencies. The Company accrues
contingent liabilities when it is probable that future expenditures will be made and such expenditures can reasonably be
estimated. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reascnable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent form other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
differert assumptions or conditions.

{a) Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of
which are wholly-owned. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in conselidation.

() Inventories

Inventories include material, labor and overhead, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
The Company writes down inventory for estimated obsclescence when warranted by estimates of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those estimated by management, additional inventory write-
downs may be required, which would have a negative effect on results of operations. Certain major ccmpenents of inventory
are discussed in more detail below.

Nitazoxanide. The Company’s nitazoxanide product for the treatment of equine protozoal myeloencephalitis
("EPM") is in registration with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA”). The Company has completed the
manufacturing, efficacy and safety components of its submission, and in February 2003 the Company submitted revised
labeling and Freedom of Information Act summary information as requested by the FDA. The Company’s inventories as of
December 31, 2002 included $8.4 million of inventory associated with the nitazoxanide product, consisting of $8.3 million of
active ingredient and $0.1 million of other raw materials. The $8.3 million of active ingredient included in inventory at
December 31, 2002 will expire in 2005.

The Company evaluates its nitazoxanide inventory on a quarterly basis for realizability. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Company incurred no further write-downs for this inventory due to expected product expiration. The
Company'’s quarterly evaluation is based upon the expiration dates described, assumptions regarding the timing cf FDA
approval and launch of the product and assumptions regarding sales volumes that the Company expects to achieve following
approval and launch of the product.

VetTest Chemistry Slides. The Company’s inventories as of December 31, 2002 included $30.2 million of slides
used in its VetTest chemistry instruments. Most of the slides have a shelf life of 24 menths at the date of manufacture. The
average remaining shelf life at December 31, 2002 was 16.9 menths. In addition, the Company is required to purchase a
minimum of $232.4 million of slides over the remaining life of its contract with Orthe-Clinical Diagnestics, Inc. (“Ortho”),
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which expires on December 31, 2010, although the Company’s purchase obligation may be extended at its option through
December 31, 2011.

The Company evaluates potential losses over the life of the Ortho contract on a quarterly basis. The Company’s
quarterly evaluation is based on an estimate of the value of slides that it is required to purchase under the contract but that
will expire before sale. The estimated less is calculated based on the expiration dating described, and an evaluation of its
minimum contractual purchase obligations relative to assumptions regarding (i) the per-customer growth in demand for slides
over the life of the contract, and (ii) changes over the life of the contract in the size of the Company's installed base of
VetTest customers resulting from (a) new VetTest instrument placements by the Company and (b) loss of customers whe
switch to other chemistry analyzers supplied by IDEXX or its competitors.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2002, the Company amended the contract with Ortho to reduce its
minimum purchase commitment for both 2002 and the life of the contract by 30 million slides (or approximately $17.7
million) in consideration for the Company’s agreement to forego approximately $2.0 million of certain volume rebates on
slides purchased in 2002. As a result of this amendment, the Company reversed the previously established contract loss
reserve of $0.7 million, of which $0.4 million was provided in 2002.

LaserCyte Hematology Instrument. As of December 31, 2002, the Company's inventories included $8.3 million of
component parts and finished goods associated with its LaserCyte hematology instrument, which the Company began
shipping to customers in November 2002. In addition, the Company has placed $0.9 million in deposits with vendors to
secure additional critical components and has firm purchase commitments of an additional $2.1 million.

The components of inventories are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2002

Raw materials.................... $ 24,260 $ 22,547
Work-in-process................. 6,778 5,769
Finished goods................... 55,156 46,770
$ 86,194 $ 75,086

(© Preperty and Equipment

The Company records property and equipment at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. When an
item is sold or retired, the cost and related accumulated depreciation is relieved, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognized in the statement of operations. The Company provides for depreciation and amortization using the declining-
balance and straight-line metheds by charges to operations in amounts that allocate the cost of property and equipment over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated
Asset Classification Useful Life
Leasehold improvements.................. Life of lease
Machinery and equipment................ 3-5 Years
Office furniture and equipment.......... 3-7 Years
Buildings..............o.o 40 Years

The Company recorded depreciation expense of $11.5 million, $12.7 million and $15.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

(d) Other Non-Current Assets, Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Other non-current assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

Description 2001 2002
Deferred tax asset.........o.oeveeiiiiniiiiiinnnn. $ 4657 % 259
Rental instruments sold under recourse, net. 5,507 4,230

Other asSetS........ovvevviieieiiieieirieeeienees 1,928 1,859
$ 12,092 § 6,348




©

o]

Intangible assets consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2001

December 31, 2002

Accumulated Accumulated

(in thousands) Cost Amprtization Cost Amortization
Existing technologies........................ $ 1,945 $ 1911 $ 1,945 $ 1,945

LiCeNSes. ... ..coevvuveiirninecniinieeinanes 1,575 491 1,725 719

Customer ists.............ooveeeiivniniinn 291 87 341 149

Non-Compete agreements. ................. 280 120 430 176

Patents........cocoovviviiiieiiieeieiin, 3,051 283 3,368 1,055

Other......coovieiiiii 605 385 400 329

$ 7,747 §$ 3277 % 8,209 3§ 4,373

Amertization expense of intangible assets is expected to be as follows (in thousands):

493
457
411
357
335

The Company provides for amortization using the straight-line method by charges to operations in amounts that
allocate the other long term assets and intangibles over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Classification

Estimated
Useful Life

Patents...........coooiiiiiiii
Non-compete agreements.......................
Customer lists.........ccocoiivieiniiiinniinnin

15 Years
5-10 Years
5 Years
5-10 Years
3 Years
5-10 Years

The Company assesses the impairment of identifiable intangibles and long-lived assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers important that
could trigger an impairment review include, but are not limited to, the following:

significant under-performance relative to historical or projected future operating results;

failures to obtain regulatory approval of certain products;

significant changes in the manner of the Company’s use of the acquired assets or the strategy for its overall business;

significant negative industry or economic trends; and

significant advancements or changes in technology.

Amortization of intangible assets excluding goodwill was $3.3 million, $1.5 million and $0.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The Company continually assesses the realizability of these assets
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”). If an impairment review is triggered, the Company evaluates the
carrying value of long-lived assets by determining if impairment exists based on estimated undiscounted future cash flows
over the remaining useful life of the assets and comparing that value to the carrying value of the assets. If the carrying value
of the asset is greater than the estimated future cash flows, the asset is written down to its estimated fair value. In determining
expected future cash flows, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which cash flows are identifiable and independent of
cash flows from other asset groups. The cash flow estimates that are used contain management's best estimates, using
appropriate and customary assumptions and projections at the time. During the quarter ended September 30, 2002, the
Company discontinued development of a product based on certain technclogy acquired as part of the Genera Technologies
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Ltd. acquisition. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $0.5 million in general and administrative expense within the
FEG segment to reflect the impairment of intangible asset.

Goodwill consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2002
CAG Segment:
Veterinary Reference Laboratories........ $ 22940 8 23,363
Pharmaceuticals...............c...ooeenin 13,745 13,745
Other CAG goodwill........................ 1,700 1,561
FEG Segment;
Water Test Products........................ 12,214 13,483
OtherFEG goodwill..................... 139 169
$ 50,738 § 52,321

The change in goodwill noted above is a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company did not
acquire any goodwill in 2002.

In 2002, SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), became effective and as a
result, the Company ceased to amortize approximately $50.7 million of goodwill beginning January 1, 2002. The Company
had recorded approximately $5.0 million of amortization on these amounts during 2001 and would have recorded
approximately $4.5 million of amortization during 2002 if the existing standards had been continued. Under SFAS No. 142,
amortization of goodwill is replaced with periodic tests for impairment. The Company was required to perform an initial
impairment review of its goodwill as of January 1, 2002, under the transitional provisions of SFAS No. 142. Thereafter, the
Company is required to perform annual tests of its goodwill for impairment or additional tests whenever events or
circumstances indicate an impairment may exist. For its transitional and annual impairment test the Company identified its
reporting units, allocated assets and liabilities (including goodwill) to the reporting units and compared the reporting units’
net book value to their estimated fair value. No impairment was identified as a result of either the transitional or year-end
annual review. The fair value of the reporting units was estimated using a discounted cash flow approach. The cash flow
estimates used contain management’s best estimates, using appropriate and customary assumptions and projections at the
time.

Net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, adjusted to exclude expense
from amortization of goodwill (net of taxes), and for the year ended December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income: $
Reported net income..................... $ 36632 § 37,620 45,389
Goodwill amortization, net of tax...... 4,121 4,466 -
Adjusted net income..................... 40,753 42,086 45,389
Basic earnings per share:
Reported basic earnings per share...... $ 1.06 $ 113§ 1.35
Goodwill amortization................... 12 13 -
Adjusted basic earnings per share...... 1.18 1.26 1.35
Diluted earnings per share:
Reported diluted earnings per share... $ 102 8 109 § 1.30
Goodwill amortization................... A1 A2 -
Adjusted diluted earnings per share. .. 113 1.21 1.30

(e) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures compensation related to employee stock-based compensation plans in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”), and
elects to disclose the pro forma impact of accounting for stock-based compensation plans under the provisions of SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”). Accordingly, nc SFAS No. 123-based employee
compensation cost has been recognized for these plans. Had compensation cost for the Company's stock-based compensation
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and employee stock purchase plans been determined consistent with the provisions of SFAS Ne. 123, the Company's net
income and net income per common and common equivalent share would have been reduced to the following pro forma

amounts (shares in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002

Net income: $
Asreported..........ooooiiiiiiiii $ 36632 § 37,620 45,389
APB 25 compensation recorded, net of tax... - - 1,116
Pro forma stock-based employee
compensation, netof tax........................ (5,089) (5,406) (8,242)

(5,089) (5,406) (7,126)
Pro forma net income.................eoennenn. 31,543 32,214 38,263
Net income per share:
Basic: asreported.............cooeiiiniiiniinnnn $ 106 § 1.13 1.35
Basic: proforma...................... 0.91 0.97 1.14
Diluted: as reported......................ooooe, 1.02 1.09 1.30
Diluted: pro forma................ccoeeviniin 0.87 0.93 1.09

See Note 9 for discussion of the Company’s stock-based compensation plans and assumptions used in determnining
pro forma stock-based employee compensation above.

O Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. This statement
reguires that the Company recegnize a current tax lability or asset for current taxes payable or refundable and a deferred tax
liability or asset for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards to the extent they are
realizable. See Note 2.

& Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB No. 101”). SAB No. 101 requires that four criteria are met before revenue is
recognized. These include (i} persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services have been
rendered, (iii) the seller’s price is fixed and determinable, and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

o  The Company reccgnizes revenue at the time of shipment (including te distributors) for substantiaily all products, as
title and risk of loss pass to the customer on delivery to the commeon carrier.

o  The Company recognizes revenue on sales to leasing companies after the instrument or practice information
management system is instailed and the customer has accepted the instrument or system.

o  The Company recognizes revenue on sales of certain instruments after the instrument is installed, where instailation
is considered essential to the usability of the instrument, and the customer has accepted the instrument.

o The Company recognizes service revenue at the time the service is performed.
o The Company recognizes revenue associated with extended maintenance agreements over the life of the contracts.

o The Company recognizes revenue from non-cancelable software licenses and hardware systems upon installation of
the software (and completion of training if applicable) or hardware because at this time collection is probable and
the Company has no significant further obligations.

o The Company recognizes revenue on certain instrument systems under rental programs over the life of the rental
agreement.

When instruments are sold tegether with extended maintenance agreements, the Company allocates revenue to the
extended maintenance agreement (the undelivered element) based on amounts charged separately to similar customers and
recognizes those revenues ratably over the agreement. The residual value is recognized as instrument revenue when
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appropriate under the policies described above. Shipping costs reimbursed by the customer are included in revenue and cost
of sales.

The Company records estimated reductions to revenue in connection with customer programs and incentive
offerings, which may give customers future rights such as free or discounted goods or services or trade-in rights. The
Company estimates these reductions based on its experience with similar customer programs in prior years. The Company's
distributors do not have the right to return products.

The Company recognizes revenue only in those situations where collection from the customer is probable. The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated Iosses resulting from the inability of its customers to
make required payments. The Company bases its estimates on its historical collection and write-off experience, current
trends, credit policy, detailed analysis of specific client situations and percentage of its accounts receivable by aging
category. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payment, additicnal allowances may be required.

(h) Research and Development and Software Development Caests

Research and Development costs are expensed as incurred. In accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed” (“SFAS No. 86”), the Company evaluates its
software research and development costs for capitalization after the technological feasibility of software and products
containing software has been established. No scftware development costs have been capitalized by the Company because
costs eligible for capitalization under SFAS No. 86 have been insignificant.

® Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are translated using the exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Revenue and expense accounts are translated using a weighted average of exchange rates in effect during
the period. Cumulative translation gains and losses are shown in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Exchange gains and losses arising from transactions
denominated in foreign currencies other than a subsidiary’s functional currency are included in current operations. Included
in general and administrative expenses are foreign currency translation losses of $0.6 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001, and a foreign currency transiation gain of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

o Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Effective in the first quarter of 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133"). SFAS No. 133, as amended, requires that all derivatives, including forward
currency exchange contracts, be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be
recorded at fair value through earnings. If a derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair
value of the derivative are either offset against the change in fair value of the hedged item through earnings or recognized in
other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The Company immediately records in earnings
the extent to which a hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value.

The Company enters into foreign currency exchange contracts of its anticipated intercompany inventory purchases
for the next twelve months in order to minimize the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on these transactions. The
Company’s accounting policies for these contracts are based on the Company's designation of such instruments as hedging
transactions. The Company also utilizes some natural hedges to mitigate its transaction and commitment exposures. The
contracts the Company enters into are firm foreign currency commitments, and therefore market gains and losses are deferred
until the contract matures, which is the period when the related cbligation is settled. The Company enters into these
exchange contracts with large multinational financial institutions. The Company does naot hold or engage in transactions
involving derivative instruments for purposes other than risk management. The Company hedges less than the full value of
forecasted intercompany sales and thus no significant ineffectiveness has resulted or been recorded through the statement of
operations. As of December 31, 2001, the Company recorded $0.4 million in unrealized losses through accumulated other
comprehensive loss from foreign exchange contracts with 2002 expiration dates. As of December 31, 2002, the Company
recorded $2.6 million in unrealized losses through accumulated other comprehensive loss from foreign exchange centracts
with 2003 expiration dates. The foreign currency contracts, which extend through December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively,
consisted of the following (in thousands):
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Currency Sold US Dollar Equivalent

2001 2002
Euro...........ocoiiinii $ 16,946 $ 19,308
British Pound.................. 12,448 13,206
Canadian Dollar............... 6,716 9,380
Australian Dollar.............. 1,396 1,479
Japanese Yen.................. 1,593 2,672
Taiwan Dollar................. 1,070 334

$ 40,169 $ 46,379

Gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts intended as hedges for intercompany sales of goods are recorded in
cost of sales. Included in cost of goods sold are foreign exchange gains of $2.7 million and $1.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively, and foreign exchange losses of $2.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2002.

k) Disclesure of Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments censist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and notes payable. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are
principally cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its investments in
highly rated financial institutions. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited to certain
customers {o whom the Company makes substantial sales. To reduce risk, the Company routinely assesses the financial
strength of its customers and, as a consequence, believes that its accounis receivable credit risk exposure is limited. The
Company maintains an allowance for potential credit losses but historicaily has not experienced any significant credit losses
related to an individual customer or groups of customers in any particular industry or gecgraphic area. The carrying amounts
of the Company's financial instruments approximate fair market value.

Certain parts and finished goods are available only from one source. While the Company does not anticipate
difficulties in obtaining any of the components used in its products, the loss of any of these sources of supply would have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

o Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding during the year. The computaticn of diluted earnings per share is similar to the computation of basic
earnings per share, except that the dencminator is increased for the assumed exercise of dilutive options and cther potentially
dilutive securities using the treasury stock method unless the effect is antidilutive. The following is a reconciliation of shares
outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002
Shares Qutstanding For Basic Earnings Per Share:
Weighted average shares outstanding..................coocciivni 34,574 33,293 33,622
Shares Cutstanding For Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Weighted average shares outstanding....................ocoiviiien 34,574 33,293 33,622
Shares assumed issued for the acquisition of Blue Ridge Pharmaceuticals, Inc... 115 65 -
Dilutive effect of options issued to employees................ccoooeoiiiiiiiiiiinniin 1,392 1,282 1,421
36,081 34,640 35,043

Options to purchase 934,000, 306,000 and 155,000 shares for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, have been
excluded from the calculation of shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive. Warrants
to purchase 806,000, 806,000 and 787,000 shares for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, have been exciuded from the
calculation of shares cutstanding for diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive.

(m) Reclassifications

Reclassifications have been made in the consolidated financial statements to conform te the current year's
presentation.
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{m) Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, requires companies to report all changes in equity during a
period, resulting from net income and transactions or other events and circumstances from non-owner sources, in a financial
statement for the period in which they are recognized. The Company has chosen to disclose comprehensive income, which
encompasses net income, foreign currency translation adjustments and the difference between the cost and the fair market
value of investments in debt securities and foreign exchange contracts, in the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders'
Equity. The Company considers the foreign currency cumulative translation adjustment to be permanently invested and
therefore has not provided income taxes on those amounts.

(0) New Accounting Standards

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144. Adoption of SFAS No. 144 is required for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 144 effective January 2002. The adoption of
SFAS No. 144 had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (*SFAS No. 145”). SFAS No. 145 rescinds FASB SFAS No. 4, “Reporting
Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,” and an amendment of SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to
Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS No. 145 also rescinds SFAS No. 44, “Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor
Carriers.” SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between the required
accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic
effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS No. 145 also amends other existing authoritative
pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed
conditions. Adoption of certain provisions of SFAS No. 145 was required after May 15, 2002, while other provisions must be
adopted with financial statements issued after May 15, 2002 or the year beginning after May 15, 2002. The Company does
not expect adoption of SFAS No. 145 to have a material impact on its operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
("SFAS No. 146”). This Statement addresses financial accounting and reperting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 84-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” Adoption of
SFAS No. 146 is required for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect
adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have material impact on its operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No.
148"). This Statement provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Additionally, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of
Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company
adopted the additional disclosure provisions of this statement required for the year ended December 31, 2002 and will include
the prescribed additional disclosures in the Company’s future filings on Form 10-Q.

In November 2002, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force reached consensus on EITF No. 00-21, “Accounting
for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” (“"EITF No. 00-21”). EITF 00-21 addresses the accounting treatment
for arrangements that provide for the delivery or performance of multiple products or services where the delivery of a
product, system or performance of services may occur at different peints in time or over different periods of time. EITF No.
00-21 requires the separation of the multiple deliverables that meet certain requirements into individual units of accounting
that are accounted for separately under the appropriate authoritative accounting literature. EITF No. 00-21 is applicable to
revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not expect the
provisions of EITF No. 00-21 to have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

® Warranty Reserves

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. The
Company’s actual warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a
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product failure. Should actual product failure rates or service delivery costs differ from management's estimates, which are
based on historical data and engineering estimates where applicable, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be
required. Below is a summary of changes in accrued warranty expense for products sold to customers for the year ended
December 31, 2002 (in thousands).

Accrued Warranty
Balance December 31, 2001 439
Provision for warranty expense 355
Provision for change in estimate of prior warranty expense.. (284)
Settlement of warranty liability (167)
Balance December 31, 2002 343

(@ Contingencies

The Comparty has certain contingent liabilities that arise in the ordinary course of business, including with respect to
actual and threatened litigation and other matters. The Company had accruals of $3.9 million at December 31, 2002 for these
contingencies. However, the Company’s actual losses with respect to these contingencies could exceed the Company’s
accruals.

{r) Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107
and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34” (“FIN No. 45”). FIN No. 45 requires that a guarantor recognize, at the
inception of a guaraniee, a liability for the fair value of the cbligation undertaken by issuing the guarantee. FIN No. 45 also
requires additional disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligaticns
under certain guarantees it has issued. The accounting requirements for the initial recogniticn of guarantees are applicable on
a prospective basis for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for
all guarantees outstanding, regardless of when they were issued or modified, for financial statements for interim or annual
pericds ending after December 15, 2002. The recognition provisions of FIN No. 45 are not expected to have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The following is a summary of the Company’s agreements and
obligations that it has determined to be within the scope of FIN No. 45.

The Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Company will indemnify its
officers and directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. The maximum payment that the Company may be
required to make under such provisions is theoretically unlimited and is impossible to determine. The Company maintains
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which may provide reimbursement to the Company for payments made tc, or cn
behalf of, officers and directors pursuant to the indemnification provisions. The Company’s indemnification obligations were
grandfathered under the provisions of FIN No. 45 as they were in effect prior to December 31, 2002. Accordingly, the
Company has recorded no liability for such obligations as of December 31, 2002.

The Company enters into agreements with third parties in the crdinary course of business under which the Company
is obligated to indemnify such third parties for and against various risks and losses. The precise terms of such indemnities
vary with the nature of the agreement. In many cases, the Company limits the maximum amount of its indemnification
obligations, but in some cases those obligations may be theoretically unlimited. The Company has not incurred material
expenses in discharging any of these indemnification obligations, and based on its analysis of the nature of the risks involved,
the Company believes that the fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has recorded no
liabilities for these obligations as of December 31, 2002.

When acquiring a business, the Company socmetimes assumes liability for certain events or occurrences that took
place prier to the date of acquisition. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to
make for such obligations is undeterminable at this time. All of these obligations were grandfathered under the provisions of
FIN No. 45 as they were in effect prior to December 31, 2002. Accerdingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these
liabilities as of December 31, 2002.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into'a workers’ compensation insurance policy where the Company
retains the first $250,000 in claim liability per incident and up to $1.2 million in claim liability in the aggregate. The
insurance company administers and pays these claims and the Company reimburses the insurance company for the
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Company's portion of these claims. The Company also agreed to issue a $450,000 letter of credit to the insurance cecmpany
as security for these claims.

(s) Advertising and Promotion Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs to sales and marketing expense in the period they are incurred.

NOTEz  INCOME TAXES

Earnings before income taxes for each year were as follows (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002

Domestic.................... $ 43,155 § 46,027 § 49,176
International................ 15,092 12,754 19,594
3 58,247 $ 58,781 $ 68,770

The provisions for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 are comprised of the

following (in thousands):

December 31,

2000 2001 2002

Current
Federal......................... $ 12,056 § 15325 $ 12,733
State.......oveiieiieiiiaiienn 3,174 3.510 2,594
International.................. 3,287 2,706 4,304
18,517 21,541 19.631

Deferred
Federal......................... 2,729 (133) 2,976
State......ooiiiiiiiie, 369 (247) 774
3,098 (380) 3,750
$ 21615 $ 21,161 $ 23,381

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate

as follows:
December 31,

2000 2001 2002
U.S. federal statutory rate........................ 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit. ... 4.0 3.6 3.2
International income taxes......................, (3.2) (3.0) (3.6)
Amortization of non-deductible assets......... 1.6 1.6 -
Non-taxable interest income..................... (1.6) (0.8) (0.8)
Other, net........ocooviiiiiin e 1.3 0.4) 0.2
Effective taxrate.............ooevviniiviienann. 37.1% 36.0% 34.0%
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The compenents of the domestic net deferred tax asset (liability) included in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets are as follows (in thousands):

2001 2002
Current Long-Term Current Long-Term
ASSETS:
Accrued expenses..................oooinnine $ 5,088 $ - 8 6212 $ -
Receivable reserves......................... 2,065 - 1,314 -
Deferred revenue............c.c.cooooenns 4,398 - 4,465 -
Inventory basis differences................ 4,248 - 2,797 -
Intangible basis differences............... - 4,305 - 3.257
Property based differences................. - 236 - -
Net operating loss carryforwards.......... 99 116 99 64
Total @ssets.........ccovvineeeniiniinncinn $ 15,898 $ 4,657 $ 14,887 8 3,321
LIABILITIES:
Property based differences................. $ - $ - 8 - 8 (1.687)
Rental instruments sold under recourse.. (1,659) - - (1,375)
Total liabilities.....................c.... $ (1,659) 8§ - 3 $ (3,062)
Net domestic deferred tax assets.............. $ 14,239 $ 4657 § 14887 § 259
The components of the foreign net deferred tax asset (in thousands):
2001 2002
Current Long-Term Current Long-Term
ASSETS:
Net operating loss carryforwards........... $ - $ 1275 % - 3 536
Total aSSetS.....ovvivrirvrinnrininninnin - 1,275 - 536
LIABILITIES:
Total labilities......................o - - -
VALUATION ALOWANCE.................. - (1,275) - (536)
Net international deferred tax assets.......... $ - $ - $ - 8 -

At December 31, 2002, the Company had demestic net operating loss carryforwards of appreximately $0.5 million
available to offset future taxable income. Net operating loss carryforwards expire at various dates beginning in 2003 through
2014. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 contains provisions that limit annual availability of the net operating loss carryforwards
due to a more than 50% change in ownership that cccurred upen the acquisition of certain companies.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards in foreign subsidiaries of approximately
$1.8 million available to offset future taxable income. These net operating loss carryforwards expire at various dates
beginning in 2003. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance for the assets because realizability is uncertain.

At December 31, 2002, unremitted earnings in subsidiaries cutside the United States totaled $44.8 million, on which
no United States taxes have been provided. The Company's intention is to reinvest these earnings permanently or to
repatriate the earnings only when tax effective to do so. It is not practical to estimate the amount of additicnal taxes that
might be payable upon repatriation of foreign earnings.

NOTE 3 CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of less than three
months.

The Company accounts for investments under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities” as available-for-sale. Investments are recorded at amortized cost and adjusted tc fair market value through
other comprehensive income. Gains on sales of investments were $0.8 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December
31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Gains on sales of investments were not significant for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Short-term investments, which have a cost basis of $12.9 million and $32.3 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively, are investment securities with maturities of greater than three months but less than one year and consist of the
follewing (in thousands):
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December 31,

2001 2002
Municipal bonds.................ooie $ 12,893 $ 32,403
Preferred stock..............ooevennn 1,000

$ 12,893 $ 33,403

Long-term investments, which have a cost basis of $21.0 million and $15.4 million as of December 31, 2001 and

2002, respectively, are investment securities with maturities of greater than one year and less than five years and consist of
the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2002
Municipal bonds........................ $ 16,951 $ 14,572
Preferred stock..........oooe - 1,000
U.S. government obligations.......... 4,065

$ 21,016 $ 15,572

NOTE 4 NOTES PAYABLE

In September 2001, the Company entered into a $20.0 million uncommitted line of credit with a large multi-national
bank. Under the terms of the agreement, the bank retained the right to approve all borrowings and all borrowings were due
on demand. Borrowings would bear interest at the bank’s prime rate. The agreement expired in October 2002. There were
no amounts outstanding at time of expiration.

In January 2003 the Company entered into a $15.0 million uncommitted line of credit with another large multi-
national bank. Under the terms of this agreement, the bank will retain the right to approve all borrowings and all borrowings
will be due on demand. Any borrowings under this line will bear interest at the mutually agreed upon rate at the time of
borrowing.

In connection with the acquisition of the business of Genera Technologies Limited in August 2000, the Company
issued notes payable to the former principal shareholder of Genera for $8.3 million, of which $7.0 million was collateralized
by cash in escrow, and the remaining $1.3 million was unsecured. In April 2002, the Company repaid $7.5 million, of which
$7.0 million was paid from the restricted cash. The remaining unsecured portion of $1.0 million is non-interest bearing, is
discounted to yield 6% and is due in three annual installments beginning in August 2002. The note holder elected to defer
the August 2002 payment of $0.5 million, which now bears interest at 3%. This payment is now payable on demand.

NOTE 5 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases its facilities under operating leases which expire through 2012. In addition, the Company is
responsible for the real estate taxes and operating expenses related to these facilities. The Company also has lease
commitments for automobiles and office equipment. Minimum annual rental payments under these agreements are as
follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2003, $ 5675
2004, 4,994
2005 . 4,335
2006......ci 3,829
2007, o 3.091
Thereafter................c...ooeeeee. 3,503
3 w54

Rent expense charged to operatiens under operating leases was approximately $5.6 million, $5.6 million and $5.9
million for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
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Under the terms of certain supply agreements with suppliers of the Company's veterinary instruments, slides for its
VetTest instruments, and certain raw materials, the Company has aggregate commitments t¢c purchase approximately $258.6
million of products through 2010. In addition, the Company has various minimum royalty payments due through 2015 of
$2.4 miliion.

From time to time, the Company has received notices alleging that the Company's products infringe third-party
proprietary rights, although the Company is not aware of any pending litigation with respect te such claims. Patent litigation
frequently is complex and expensive, and the outcome of patent litigation can be difficult to predict. There can be no
assurance that the Company will prevail in any infringement proceedings that may be commenced against the Company. If

the Company loses any such litigation, it may be stopped from selling certain products and/or it may be required to pay
damages as a result of the litigation.

NOTE 6 STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(a) Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by law, without further stockholder
approval, to issue from time to time up to 500,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value per share (“Preferred Stock”), in
cne or more series. Each such series of Preferred Stock shall have such number of shares, designations, preferences, voting
powers, qualifications and special or relative rights or privileges as shall be determined by the Board of Directers, which may
include, among others, dividend rights, voting rights, redemption and sinking fund provisicns, liguidation preferences,
conversion rights and preemptive rights.

() Series A Jumnior Participating Preferred Stock

On December 17, 1996, the Company designated 100,000 shares of Preferred Stock as Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series A Stock”) in connection with its Shareholder Rights Plan. See Note 7. In general, each share of
Series A Stock will: (i) be entitled to a minimum preferential quarterly dividend of $10 per share and to an aggregate
dividend of 1,000 times the dividend declared per share of Common Stock, (ii) in the event of liguidation, be entitled to a
minimum preferential liquidation payment of $1,000 per share (plus accrued and unpaid dividends) and to an aggregate
payment of 1,000 times the payment made per share of Common Stock, (iii) have 1,000 votes, voting together with the
Common Stock, (iv) in the event of any merger, consclidation or other transaction in which Common Stock is exchanged, be
entitled to receive 1,800 times the amcunt received per share of Common Stock and (v) not be redeemable. These rights are
protected by customary antidilution provisions. There are no shares of Series A Stock outstanding.

NOTE7  PREFERRED STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS

On December 17, 1996, the Company adopted a Sharehoider Rights Plan and declared a dividend cf one prefeired
stock purchase right for each outstanding share of Common Stock to stockholders of record at the close of business on
December 30, 1996. Under certain conditions, each right may be exercised to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of
Series A Stock at a purchase price of $200.G0. The rights will be exercisable conly if a person or group has acquired
beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the Common Stock or commenced a tender or exchange offer that would result in
such a person or group owning 30% or more of the Common Stock. The Company generally will be entitled to redeem the
rights, in whole, but not in part, at a price of $.01 per right at any time until the tenth business day following a public
announcement that a 20% stock position has been acquired and in certain other circumstances.

If any person or group becomes a beneficial cwner of 20% or more of the Common Stock (except pursuant to a
tender or exchange offer for all shares at a fair price as determined by the outside members of the Company's Beard of
Directors), each right not owned by a 20% stockholder will enable its holder to purchase such number of shares of Common
Stock as is equal to the exercise price of the right divided by one-half of the current market price of the Common Stock on
the date of the occurrence of the event. In addition, if the Company thereafter is acquired in a merger or other business
combination with ancther person or group in which it is not the surviving corporation or in connection with which its
Common Stock is changed or converted, or if the Company selis or transfers 50% or more of its assets or earning power to
another person, each right that has not previously been exercised will entitle its holder to purchase such number of shares of
common stock of such other person as is equal to the exercise price of the right divided by one-half of the current market
price of such common stock on the date of the cccurrence of the event.
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NOTE®&  IDEXX RETIREMENT AND INCENTIVE SAVINGS PLAN

The Company has established the IDEXX Retirement and Incentive Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). Employees
eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan may contribute specified percentages of their salaries, a portion of which will be
matched by the Company. The Company matched $1.5 million for the year 2000, $1.5 million for the year 2001, and $1.6
million for the year 2002. In addition, the Company may make contributions to the 401 (k) Plan at the discretion of the Board
of Directors. There were no discretionary contributions in 2000, 2001 and 2002.

NOTE 9 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

As discussed in Note 1(e), the Company accounts for stock-based compensation toc employees in accordance with
APB No. 25, and elects to disclose the pro forma impact of accounting for stock-based compensation plans under the
provisions of SFAS No. 123. Accordingly, no SFAS No. 123-based compensation cost has been recognized for these plans.

In order to determine the pro forma impact under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for the
grants in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively; no dividend yield for all years; expected velatility of 65% for 2000, 48% for
2001 and 55% for 2002; risk-free interest rates of 4.9%, 4.4% and 3.3% for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively; and expected
lives of 4.6 years for 2000, 5.2 years for 2001, and 6.0 years for 2002. At December 31, 2002, the options outstanding had
the following characteristics (in thousands, except exercise price and per share amounts).

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted
Number Average Remaining Number Average
Exercise Price of Exercise Contract Of Exercise

Range Options Price Life Options Price
$ 844-8% 1775 1,929 $ 1596 4.65 1,514 $ 15.73
19.25 - 22.69 1,237 21.80 6.44 612 21.14
2275 - 25.20 1.151 24.60 7.50 384 24.25
26.63 - 46.00 1,144 27.24 8.65 149 28.39

The Company's stock-based compensation plans are described below. Each of these plans, and any amendments
thereto increasing the number of shares issuable thereunder, was approved by the Company’s stockholders.

1991 Stock Option Plan

During 1991, the Board of Directors approved the 1891 Stock Option Plan which, as amended, provides for grants
up to 6,475,000 incentive and nonqualified stock options at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. Incentive stock options are granted at the fair market value on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date
of grant. Incentive stock options for greater than 10% shareholders are granted at 110% of the fair market value and expire
five years from the date of grant. Nonqualified options may be granted at no less than 100% of the fair market value on the
date of grant. The vesting schedule of all options is determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors at
the time of grant.

1991 Director Option Plan

During 1991, the Beard of Directors approved the 1391 Director Option Plan (as amended, the “1991 Director
Plan”) pursuant to which Directors who were not officers or employees of the Company were eligible to receive nonstatutory
options to purchase shares of the Company's Common Stock. The time period for granting options under the 1991 Director
Plan expired in accordance with the terms of the plan in June 1996.
1997 Director Option Plan

During 1997, the Board of Directors approved the 1997 Director Option Plan (the “1997 Director Plan”) pursuant to

which Directors who were not officers or employees of the Company received nonstatutory options to purchase shares of the
Company's Common Steck. On May 19, 1999, this plan was terminated and replaced with the 1999 Director Stock Plan.
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1998 Stock Incentive Plan

During 1998. the Board of Directors approved the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1998 Stock Plan”), which prevides
for grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. A total of 4,100,000 shares of Common Stock may be issued under the 1998 Stock Plan as amended. Options
granted under the 1998 Stock Plan may not be granted at an exercise price less than the fair market value of the Common
Stock on the date granted (or less than 110% of the fair market value in the case of incentive stock options granted to holders
of more than 10% of the Company's Common Steck). Options may not be granted for a term of more than ten years. The
vesting schedule of all options granted under the 1998 Stock Plan is determined by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors af the time of grant.

1999 Director Stock Plan

During 1899, the Board of Directors approved the 1999 Director Stock Plan pursuant to which Directors who were
not officers or employees of the Company received shares of the Company's Commen Stock. A total of 80,000 shares of
Common Stock were issuzble under the 1999 Director Stock Plan. In May 2000, the 1999 Director Stock Plan was
terminated and replaced with the 2000 Director Option Plan. As of December 31, 2000, 13,364 shares had been issued under
the 1999 Director Stock Plan, and the fair value of these shares of $0.4 million was charged to expense in 1999 and 2000.

2000 Director Option Plan

During 2008, the Beard of Directers approved the 2000 Directer Option Plan (the “2000 Director Plan”) pursuant to
which Directers who are not officers or employees of the Company receive nonstatutory options to purchase shares of the
Company’s Common Stock. Under the 2000 Director Plan each non-employee Director is granted an option to purchase
6,500 shares of Common Stock at each annual meeting of the Company's sharehclders. Opticns granted under the 2000
Director Plan have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant,
vest fully cn the first anniversary of the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. A total of 200,000 shares of
Common Stock may be issued under the plan.

Summary of Qutstanding Options

A summary of the status of the Company's stock opticn plans as of December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and changes
during the years then ended is presented in the table below (in thousands, except weighted average exercise price):

Total Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Number Of Average Number Of Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Cutstanding, December 31, 1999.................... 5,726 $ 16.78 2624 % 13.85
Granted..........coooviiiiiii 1,189 19.20
Exercised........c..coocoiiiiiiiiiii (601) 15.30
Terminated................covviiiiiiin, (682) 19.10
Outstanding December 31, 2000.................... 5,632 17.17 2815 % 14.82
Granted..........coviiiiiiiii 1,114 23.88
Exercised...........ocoooo i (927) 13.86
Terminated...................coi (534) 19.58
Cutstanding December 31, 2001.................... 5,285 18.98 2617 § 16.45
Granted.........coooviiiiii 1,326 26.28
Exercised...........ocooiiiiiiii (905) 13.06
Terminated...............coiviiiiniians (245) 24.79
Cutstanding December 31, 2002.................... 5,461 21.47 2659 § 18.92

As of December 31, 2002 a total of 1,436,629 shares of Commeon Stock were available for future grants under the
Company’s stock option plans.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans
During 1994, the Board of Directors approved the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, under which the Company

had reserved up to an aggregate of 300,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance in semiannual offerings over a three-year
period. During 1997, the Board of Directors approved the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, under which the Company
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has reserved and may issue up to an aggregate of 420,000 shares of Common Stock in semiannual offerings. Also during
1997, the Board of Directors approved the 1997 International Employee Stock Purchase Plan, under which the Company has
reserved and may issue up to an aggregate of 30,000 shares of Common Stock in semiannual offerings. Stock is sold under
each of these plans at 85% of fair market value, as defined in the plans. Shares subscribed to and issued under the plans were
68,900 in 2000, 54,550 in 2001 and 53,000 in 2002.

Under SFAS No. 123, pro forma compensation cost is recognized for the fair value of the employees' purchase rights,
which was estimated using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively:
no dividend yield for all years; an expected life of one year for all years; expected volatility of 65% for 2000, 48% for 2001
and 40% for 2002; and risk-free interest rates of 4.7%, 2.2% and 1.2% for 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Expected
volatitlity of purchase rights under employee stock purchase rights is based cn an expected life of only one year because
shares are automatically purchased by plan participants at the end of each semiannual offering. The weighted-average fair
value of those purchase rights granted in 2000, 2001 and 2002 was $6.27, $7.07 and $6.95 per share, respectively.

NOTE 16 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company discloses information regarding its segments in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS No. 131”). SFAS No. 131 requires
disclosures about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires selected information about operating
segments in interim financial statements. It also requires related disclosures about products and services and geographic
areas. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance. The Company's chief operating decision maker is the chief executive officer.

The Company is organized into business units by market and customer group. The Company's reportable operating
segments include the Companion Animal Group (“CAG”), the Food and Environmental Group (“FEG”) and other. The CAG
develops, designs, and distributes products and performs services for veterinarians. The CAG also manufactures certain
biology-based test kits for veterinarians and develops products for therapeutic applications in companion animals. FEG
develops, designs, manufactures and distributes products and performs services to detect disease and contaminants in food
animals, food and water. In 1999 and 2000, the Company disposed of products and services for food microbiology testing.
Both the CAG and FEG distribute products and services world-wide. Other is primarily comprised of corporate research and
development, CEC succession charge and interest income and includes cash, short-term investments, long-term investments,
deferred tax assets and other miscellaneous current and long-term assets.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies except that most interest income and expense are not allocated to individual operating segments and
income taxes are provided (benefited) on each segment using the overall effective rate. The Company's segment information
follows (in thousands):
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CAG FEG Other Total

2002
Revenue..............coovvveeinininn, $ 326,897 $ 85,773 - 412,670
Operating income (loss).................. 46,052 26,040 (6,277) 65,815
Depreciation and amortization.......... 18,827 1,297 - 20,124
Interest income. ............ccoeeiieniinne - - 2,955 2,955
Provision for income taxes............... 15,658 8,854 (1,131) 23,381
Net income (10SS)...........cooovivvinnennn 30,394 17,186 (2,191) 45,389
Segment assets............c.covvieninnnn, 195,280 37,523 183,849 416,652
Expenditures for property................ 14,696 391 - 15,087

2001
Revenue...........cooovvveiiiin s $ 308,048 $ 78,033 - 386,081
Operating income (10ss).................. 36,599 22,676 (2,723) 56,552
Depreciation and amortization.......... 20,389 1,840 - 22,229
Interest income.............cooeeeeennnn.. - - 2,229 2,229
Provision for income taxes............... 13,176 8,163 (178) 21,161
Net income (108S).............ocevevvnenn, 23,423 14,513 (316) 37,620
Segment assets............cc..ceeueunnnns 207,515 41,270 124,322 373,107
Expenditures for property............... 16,749 632 - 17,381

2000
Revenue..................ooeeeiinnnnl, $ 295,740 $ 71,692 - 367,432
Operating income (10s8).................. 36,207 19,161 (2,117) 53,251
Depreciation and amortization.......... 16,855 2,626 - 19,481
Interest income..............cocoeienane 87 18 4,891 4,996
Provision for income taxes............... 13,469 7,117 1,029 21,615
Net income (108S)............coevvvinnnn, 22,825 12,062 1,745 36,632
Segment assets...............ccovceninnn 191,147 44,364 100,285 335,796
Expenditures for property................ 14,215 1,305 - 15,520

Revenue by principal geographic area based on the location of the customer was as follows (in thousands):

Americas

Europe
United Kingdom..

Years Ended December 31,

Germany......................

Japan....................

2000 2061 2002

........... $ 269,782 $ 279702 § 293,591
........... 10,449 11,352 12,074
........... 4,935 3,456 4,262
285,166 296,510 309,927

........... 24,612 28,005 31,141
7,784 8,372 11,706

........... 7.605 7.600 8,927
.......... 16,359 17,113 20,814
56,360 61,090 72,588

12,902 12,812 13,283

6,945 8,776 9,935

.......... 6,059 6,893 6.937
25,906 28,481 30,155

........... $§ 367432 $ 386,081 $ 412,670
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Net long-lived assets by principal geographic areas was as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Americas
United States.................. $ 80721 § 80,036 $ 80,465
Other Americas............... 177 161 135
80,898 80,197 80,600
Europe
United Kingdom.............. 18,299 16,660 17,618
Germany.............ccoeeuee 121 66 10
France...........c..oennnn 76 52 36
Netherlands................... 1,374 1,252 881
Other Europe................. 375 297 481
20,245 18,327 19,026
Asia Pacific Region
Japan............l 874 841 680
Australia................... 4,880 4,483 5231
Other Asia Pacific 725 575 75
6.479 5,899 5,986
Total.......oooviiiieiae $ 107622 $§ 104423 8 105,612
NOTE 11 ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2001 2002
Accrued employee compensation and related expenses... $ 13.798 $ 17,052
Accrued income taxes..............ocoiiii i 9,213 8,043
Accrued marketing and customer programs................ 418 6,170
Other accrued expenses................cooovveiniiiiinnennn 15.461 20,445
$ 38,890 $ 51,710

NOTE 12 ACQUISITIONS

(@

Veterinary Reference Laboratories

The Company's consolidated results of operations include two veterinary reference laboratory businesses acquired

in 2000 for an aggregate purchase price of $3.4 million plus the assumption of certain liabilities.

In connection with these acquisitions, the company entered into non-competition agreements with the sellers for up
to 10 years. The Company has accounted for these acquisitions under the purchase method of accounting. The results of
operations of each of these businesses has been included in the Company's consolidated results of operations since their
respective dates of acquisition. The Company has not presented pro forma information because of immateriality. These

acquisitions are as follows:

©

On March 9, 2000, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, IDEXX Veterinary Services, Inc., acquired
the assets and certain liabilities of Sierra Veterinary Laboratory LLC (*Sierra”), based in Los Angeles, California. In
addition, the Company agreed to make future payments in each of the next four years based on the results of operations of
Sierra, which will be treated as additional purchase price. The Company has made the first and second payments under this

agreement.

o]

On July 1, 2000, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, IDEXX Laboratories Pty. Ltd., acquired
Veterinary Pathology Services Pty. Ltd., a veterinary laboratory business with locations in Adelaide, Brisbane and Sydney,

Australia.
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(b) Genera Technologies Limited

On August 11, 2000, the Company acquired Genera Technologies Limited, a U.K. based provider of products that
test for cryptosporidia in water, for $8.9 million in cash and $8.3 million in notes to the former principal shareholder, of
which $7.0 millicn was collateralized by cash in escrow. The Company also agreed to make four annual additional payments
of up to $0.6 million {totaling $2.5 miilicn) based upon performance of the business after the acquisition. The Company was
not required to make the first and second annual payments. The Company has accounted for this acquisition under the
purchase method of accounting and has included the results of operations in its consolidated results since the acquisition date.
The Company has not presented pro forma information because of immateriality.

{(c) Blue Ridge Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

On October 1, 1998, the Company acquired all of the capital stock of Blue Ridge Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Blue
Ridge”) for approximately $39.1 million in cash, $7.8 million in notes, 115,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock and
warrants to acquire 806,000 shares of Common Stock at $31.59 per share which expire on September 30, 2003. In addition,
the Company agreed to issue up to 1,241,000 shares of its Commeon Stock based on the achievement by the Company’s
pharmaceutical business (including Blue Ridge) of net sales and operating profit targets through 2004. All former
shareholders received equal value in the form of cash/netes/stock, warrants and contingent shares on a per share basis. The
notes bore interest at 6% annually and were paid in two equal annual installments on October 1, 1999 and 2000 to certain key
employees of Blue Ridge. The 115,000 shares of Commen Stock were issued in 2001 to a key employee of Blue Ridge.
Blue Ridge (now known as IDEXX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) is a development-stage animal health pharmaceutical company
lecated in Greensboro, North Carclina. The Company has accounted for this acquisition under the purchase method of
accounting and has included the results of operaticns in its consolidated results since the date of acquisition. The Company
will recerd the issuance of any further shares discussed above as additional gocdwill when and if the shares are issued.
Although as of December 31, 2002, up to 800,000 of the 1,241,000 shares described above theoretically could be issued to
the former Blue Ridge shareholders, the Company does not anticipate that it will issue any additional shares in connection
with this agreement. As of December 31, 2002 warrants to purchase 663,000 shares of Common Stock remained outstanding.

NOTE 13 DIVESTITURES

Through a series of transactions in December 1999 and February 2000, the Company sold certain assets and
subsidiaries of its Food and Environmental Group. As a result of these transactions, the Company recorded a net gain of $1.5
million in 2000. The results of operations of these businesses have been included in the consolidated results of operations
through the respective sale dates. Pro forma information has not been presented because of immateriality.

During February 2000, the Company sold certain assets and the rights to its Lightning® , Simplate® and Bind®
product lines and its subsidiary Acumedia for $10.4 million in cash, a $0.5 million note payable, and the assumption of
certain liabilities. The note bore interest at 7% and was paid in 2001. In addition, the Cempany entered intoc non-compete
agreements for up to five years.

NOTE 14 SERVICE REVENUE
Service revenue, which includes laberatory service revenue and maintenance and repair revenue, totaled

approximately $86.9 million, $96.1 million, and $104.0 millicn in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The cost of service
revenue in 2000, 2001 and 2002 totaled approximately $71.0 million, $74.1 million, and $76.2 million, respectively.

NOTE 15 STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

During 1999 and 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to an aggregate of ten million shares of
the Company's Common Stock in the open market or in negotiated transactions. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
approximately 7,614,000 shares and 8,614,000 shares, respectively, of Common Stock had been repurchased under this
pregram. The Company repurchased 3,125,000 shares, 590,000 shares and 1,000,000 shares in the years ended December 31,
2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
NOTE 16 SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

No custemer accounted for greater than 10% of the Company’s revenue in 2000, 2001 and 2002.
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NOTE 17 CEO SUCCESSICN

NOTE 18 SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

A summary of quarterly data follows (in thousands, except per share data):

In january 2002, the Company's Founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer was succeeded by its current
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. As a result of an October 2001 employment agreement, the Company is required to
make certain payments to its former Chief Executive Officer and provide certain benefits to him following a succession to a
new Chief Executive Officer. As a result of the succession, the Company incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately $3.4
million, $1.8 million of which is non-cash. As of December 31, 2002, $0.9 million was due under this agreement and
recorded in accrued liabilities. This amount will be paid over the remaining term.

F-27

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2001
Revenue.......................... $ 91.426 $ 102,001 $ 97,522 95,132
Gross profit...................... 43,865 49,513 46,421 43,532
Operating income................ 11,188 15.048 15,447 14,869
Net income........................ 7.609 9,966 10,217 9,828
Earnings per share:
Basic....coooooeeiiiin 0.23 0.30 0.31 0.29
Diluted........................ 0.22 0.29 0.30 0.28
2002
Revenue.....................coee. $ 96.551 $ 105,690 $ 104,534 105,895
Gross profit.................... 43,061 49,895 50,760 49,009
Operating income................ 10,316 18,699 18,300 18,500
Net income........................ 7,185 12,964 12,483 12,757
Earnings per share:
Basic......coooooiin $ 21 $ 38 $ 37 .38
Diluted...............oooo $ 21 $ 37 $ .36 .36
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10-K

The form 10-K, contained herein, for

the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002, is not accompanied
by the exhibits which were filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
These exhibits are accessible on the
Internet at sec.goviedgar.shiml or
idexx.com/Aboutldexx/InvestorRelations/SEC.
In addition, the Company will furnish
any such exhibits to those stockholders
who request the same upon payment to
the Company of its reasonable expenses
in furnishing such exhibits. Requests for
any such exhibits should be made to:
Investor Relations, IDEXX Laboratories,
Inc., One IDEXX Drive, Westbrook,
Maine 04092-2041.

Quarterly Reports

Quarterly reports containing current
financials can be obtained upon request
from IDEXX Laboratories, Inc., Investor
Relations. Shareholders can elect to receive
this information via our Web site, e-mail
distribution list, or fax distribution list.




N . .
L . , , ” , SIREABIY ) oty Sty S oy ydnsinon




RN
B/ L==V7N7\\
LABORATORIES

IDEXX Laboratories, Inc.

One IDEXX Drive

Westbrook, Maine 04092-2041 USA
TEL 207-856-0300
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